
NEW BRITAIN BOARD OF EDUCATION  
SPECIAL FINANCE, FACILITIES, AND 

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MEETING 

May 31, 2023 – 6:15 PM | NEW BRITAIN EDUCATIONAL ADMINISTRATION CENTER 

1



272 Main Street  •  P.O. Box 1960  •  New Britain, CT 06050-1960  •  P (860) 827-2200  •  F (860) 612-1527 

WWW.CSDNB.ORG 

NEW BRITAIN BOARD OF EDUCATION 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

TO: 

DATE: 

RE: 

New Britain Board of Education Members 
Mayor Erin Stewart 
Mr. Mark H. Bernacki, Town and City Clerk 
New Britain Common Council Members 

May 30, 2023 

New Britain Board of Education Special Committee Meetings 

The following Board of Education special committee meetings will be held: 

● The New Britain Board of Education Personnel Committee will hold a special meeting on 
Wednesday, May 31, 2023 at 6:00 PM at the New Britain Educational Administration Center, located
at 272 Main Street in New Britain, Connecticut.

● The New Britain Board of Education Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee will hold a
special meeting on Wednesday, May 31, 2023 at 6:15 PM at the New Britain Educational
Administration Center, located at 272 Main Street in New Britain, Connecticut.

Members of the public may attend meetings in person or view a live broadcast of the proceedings 
online via the livestream link: 

https://www.csdnb.org/board/ 

The agendas and board packets in their entirety can be found on the Board of Education website: 
https://www.csdnb.org/board/BOE-2023-Meetings-Documents-Calendar.php 

2

https://www.csdnb.org/board/
https://www.csdnb.org/board/BOE-2023-Meetings-Documents-Calendar.php


New Britain Board of Education 
Gayle Sanders-Connolly – President l Merrill Gay – Vice President l Joseph Listro – Secretary 

Anthony Cane| Monica Dawkins | Anthony Kane | Matthew Marino | Annie S. Parker l Diana Reyes l Tina Santana

New Britain Board of Education l Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee Special
Meeting 

May 31, 2023 – 6:15 PM l New Britain Educational Administration Center 
 Members of the public may attend meeting in person or view a live broadcast of the meeting online via the livestream link: 

https://www.csdnb.org/board/ 

1. Call to Order and Opening

A. Meeting Called to Order

2. Presentation

A. Presentation: CT Feminine Care Act - Accessibility to Feminine Hygiene Products 
Presented by Ms. Rebecca Gonzalez

B. Presentation: 140 Freezer Project
Presented by Mr. Robert Smedley l Page 5

C. Presentation: DRAFT Lease to Extend CSDNB use of Pope John Paul School as Swing Space During Renovation of 
Holmes School 
Presented by Dr. Tony Gasper l Page 17

3. New Business

A. Review and Approve Minutes from Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee Meeting on April 24, 2023 
Submitted by Ms. Aja Edwards l Page 38

B. Facilities/IT Update
Presented by Ms. Rebecca Gonzalez and Mr. Jeff Prokop  l Page 41

C. Partnerships: Accept Donation from The Petit Foundation to Help Support the 3 Week CREATE Summer Program
($10,000.00)
Submitted by Ms. Mayra Rodriguez l Page 64

D. Partnerships: Accept Donation from the First Church of Christ, Congregational for Youth Homeless Road to Recovery 
Program ($2,000.00)
Submitted by Mr. Joe Vaverchak l Page 65

E. Partnerships: Accept Grant from The Fund for Greater Hartford to Help Support the 3-week SEE and CREATE Summer 
Programs ($50,000.00)
Submitted by Ms. Mayra Rodriguez l Page 68

3

https://www.csdnb.org/board/


New Britain Board of Education 
Gayle Sanders-Connolly – President l Merrill Gay – Vice President l Joseph Listro – Secretary 

Anthony Cane| Monica Dawkins | Anthony Kane | Matthew Marino | Annie S. Parker l Diana Reyes l Tina Santana

F. Operations: Approve Purchase Order Under the CT Feminine Care Act for Accessibility to Feminine Hygiene Products-
NBHS ($18,202.08)
Submitted by Ms. Rebecca Gonzalez l Funding Source: State grant and Facilities 56101 l Page 72

G. Operations: Approve Bid Award Between CSDNB and Imperial Bag & Paper Co. LLC for Custodial Equipment and
Supplies – Districtwide ($350,000.00)
Submitted by Ms. Rebecca Gonzalez l Funding Source: Facilities Custodial Supplies 101093126000 - 56101 l Page 76

H. Operations: Approve Purchase Order for 300 Pochar C30BH Charging Carts for the District ($153,000.00)
Submitted by Mr. Jeff Prokop l Funding Source: MIS Local Budget - Equipment Replacement 101092125800-57345 l Page 97

I. Operations: Approve Purchase Order for Chromebooks for Online Assessments, Classroom Tasks, Assignments and
Enrichments for the Students – Pulaski ($35,000.00)
Submitted by Mr. Alex Ortiz l Funding Source: Commissioner's Network 234705310001-57243 l Page 101

J. Operations: Approve Contract and Bid Award Between CSDNB and Ricoh for Yearly Copier Services and Fleet Leasing
-Districtwide ($212,019.36 - $245,000.00)
Submitted by Mr. Jeff Prokop l Funding Source: MIS Local Budget Copier and Print Services starting in FY 2023-24
101092125300-55500 l Page 105

K. Operations: Approve Purchase Order of 900 Chromebooks for the Elementary Schools – Districtwide ($288,900.00)
Submitted by Mr. Jeff Prokop l Funding Source: MIS Local Budget Equipment Replacement 2023-24 101092125800-57345 l Page
128

L. Operations: Approve Purchase Order of 900 Touchscreen Chromebooks for the Elementary Schools – Districtwide
($301,500.00)
Submitted by Mr. Jeff Prokop l Funding Source: MIS Local Budget Equipment Replacement 2023-24 101092125800-57345 l Page
132

M. Operations: Approve Purchase Order Between CSDNB and Webroot EDR For One Year License of Several Antivirus
Products ($26,650.00)
Submitted by Mr. Jeff Prokop l Funding Source: MIS Local Software Budget (2023-24) 101092110000-53510 l Page 136

N. Operations: Accept Financial Report – April 30, 2023
Submitted by Ms. Ann Alfano l Page 140

A. Other Business as Permitted by Law
B. Adjournment

4. Closing and Adjournment

4



 

 
 

 

Board Memorandum 
Submitted by Robert Smedley () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on June 5, 2023. 

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Rebecca Gonzalez   Staff Presenter: Robert Smedley 

 

 Type of Memorandum 

 
Presentation to the Board  

 

 Background and Purpose/Rationale 

 
140 Freezer Project 
 
Whitson's food service provisions large amounts of fresh food in order to produce close to 20,000 plus 
meals daily.  Food operations of this size require an expansive amount of freezer and refrigeration space.  
The Cafeteria Lunch Fund monies can be used to fund projects that would improve and benefit the lunch 
program. The facilities department has planned to use the leased warehouse space at 140 Production Ct.      
 

 Financial Information 

 
N/A 
 

 Committee Review 

 
To be reviewed by the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee on May 31, 2023 

 
 

140 Freezer BOE Presentation - Robert Smedley.pdf 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

5

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1rHIMRCzgJbmwOCJXQFl0CGSQS7qjyBGw/view?usp=drivesdk


6



7



140 Freezer

● Will replace the 10 temporary freezer boxes at NBHS and Pulaski

● Allow Whitsons to source fresh products directly from seller vs. third party

● 10 year lease on 140 Production court for Central Kitchen 
○ -Project was not feasible

● AmeriKooler Modular system- Freezer / Refrigeration/ Climate Controlled

8



140 Freezer Budget

9

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/19pxFxiyrN-c33coFKgqrquaEvTaZRx3SQ8Q8R2K2lQk/edit?usp=sharing


10



11



12



13



14



15



Item Cost Notes
Controls $52,500 Bacnet, Sensors and All BMS
Freezer Box $505,855 AmeriKooler
Electrical $193,000 All install and Generator
Refrigeration $354,000 60 tons of cooling machinery
Labor $80,784 Air Temp and Subcontractors
Materials for MEP $34,750 Refigeration lines, Plumbing fittings and pipe
Ductwork $73,000 Exhaust and Fresh Air duct work
Fans $22,655 Exhaust and Supply in line fans
Misc Dampers Insulation $25,000 Exhaust and Supply fan attachments
Fire and Life Safety (not cameras) $71,474 Fire Alarm, Sprinkler work, box sensors
Mechanical Room $65,000 Construction of actual walls, celing etc
Concrete Floor $197,000 4" foam, 6 " rebar and fiber mesh concrete pour
Engineering Fees (Drawings) $87,800 Architectual Drawings and Plans for Construction
Ramps 5,600 Forklift ramps to enter freezer
Frank Doors (Sliding/ Egress) $50,000 Egress and sliding doors for forklift entry

20 % CT Contract Allowance $363,684 CT 19PSX0002 - 20% mark up on materials permitted

Permit Fees $50,000 MEP / Construction and Building Fees
Rigging $5,000 Walker Crane - Waiting on quote/ hourly rate

Loading Dock Modifications 35,000 Per owner
Construction Contingency 182,000 10 %
Owner Contingency 100,000 5 %

Construction Total $1,818,418
Total Project Budget $2,554,102 Not to Exceed

16



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Tony Gasper () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on June 5, 2023.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Tony Gasper Staff Presenter: Tony Gasper

Type of Memorandum

Presentation to the Board

Background and Purpose/Rationale

Presentation of DRAFT contract to extend CSDNB use of Pope John Paul School as swing space during
construction

Presentation of DRAFT contract to extend CSDNB use of Pope John Paul School as swing space during
construction.

Financial Information

The total is and the funding source is .

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee on May 31, 2023

New Britain Public Schools Lease of 221 Farmington Ave, New Britain 7-1-23 to 6-30-26 (W0756438xBBEF3) - DRAFT - Anthony Gasper.doc

17

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1nnw-b71TDM7p3O9-7U1DAFK8Jz7IsCrF/edit?usp=drivesdk&ouid=110949472072000870802&rtpof=true&sd=true


DRAFT

REAL ESTATE LEASE

ARTICLE ONE: BASIC TERMS

This Article One contains the Basic Terms of this Lease between the Landlord and Tenant
named below. Other Articles and Sections of the Lease referred to in this Article One
explain and define the Basic Terms and are to be read in conjunction with the Basic
Terms.

Section 1.01. Date of Lease: May ____, 2023

Section 1.02. Landlord: The Church of the Holy Cross, New Britain

Notice Address of Landlord: 31 Biruta Street
New Britain, CT 06053

Section 1.03. Tenant: The Consolidated School District of
The City of New Britain

Section 1.04. Property: 221 Farmington Avenue, New Britain,
Connecticut 06053

Section 1.05. Demised Premises: The Property, including the St. John Paul II
school building, grounds and the fenced
parking lot to the rear of the Building.

Section 1.06. Lease Term: Beginning July 1, 2023 and ending on June
30, 2025, unless either extended pursuant to
the terms of Section 2.02 hereof or earlier
terminated.

Section 1.07. Permitted Uses: For educational facility use for ages
kindergarten through 5th grade, general
office use and related purposes.

Section 1.08. Rent and Other Charges Payable by Tenant:
(a) Base Rent: $72,000 per annum for the period of 7/1/23

to 6/30/24, payable in equal monthly
installments of $6,000.00;

$132,000.00 per annum, for the period of
7/1/24 to 6/30/26, payable in
equal monthly installments of $11,000.00.

(b) Other Periodic Payments: Utilities (See Section 4.03) and other

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 18



additional charges referenced in Article
Four hereof.

Section 1.09. Brokers: None

ARTICLE TWO: LEASE TERM

Section 2.01. Lease of Demised Premises for Lease Term.

Landlord leases the Demised Premises to Tenant and Tenant leases the Demised Premises
from Landlord for the Lease Term. The Lease Term is for the period stated in Section
1.06 above, unless renewed in accordance with Section 2.02 below or unless sooner
terminated. The “Rent Commencement Date” for Base Rent shall mean July 1, 2023.

Section 2.02 Renewal Term.

Tenant shall have the option to renew this Lease for one additional twelve (12) month
term on at least thirty (30) days’ prior notice to Landlord; provided that the Tenant is not
in Default at the time of renewal. The terms of this Lease shall apply to the renewal term.

Section 2.03. Holding Over.

Tenant shall vacate the Demised Premises upon the expiration or earlier termination of
this Lease. If Tenant does not vacate the Demised Premises upon the expiration or earlier
termination of the Lease and Landlord thereafter accepts rent from Tenant, Tenant’s
occupancy of the Demised Premises shall be a “month-to-month” tenancy, subject to all
of the terms of this Lease, except as to rent which shall be one hundred ten percent
(110%) of the Rent payable for the month immediately preceding such expiration or
termination. Tenant agrees to indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from and against
any and all damages sustained and liabilities incurred by Landlord as a result of Tenant’s
continued occupancy of any part of the Demised Premises beyond the expiration or
termination of this Lease. This subparagraph shall not limit or modify any other rights or
remedies of Landlord under this Lease or otherwise.

ARTICLE THREE: BASE RENT

Section 3.01. Time and Manner of Payment.

Tenant shall pay Landlord the Base Rent in the amount stated in Section 1.08(a) above
beginning on the Rent Commencement Date (July 1, 2023). On the Rent
Commencement Date and on the first day of each month thereafter, Tenant shall pay
Landlord the Base Rent, in advance, without offset, deduction or prior demand. The Base
Rent shall be payable at Landlord’s address or at such other place as Landlord may
designate in writing.

If Tenant shall fail to pay any rental payment provided herein within 10 days after the due
date, then Tenant shall pay as additional rent a late charge of One Hundred Dollars
($100.00) per month or portion of month thereof for each month after due date.

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 19



ARTICLE FOUR: OTHER CHARGES PAYABLE BY TENANT

Section 4.01. Additional Rent.

Except for Base Rent, all monies required to be paid by Tenant hereunder shall be
considered additional rent (“Additional Rent”).

Tenant shall pay (a) the cost of maintenance and repair of the following (subject to
Section 6.02): (i) all interior and exterior elements of the building, including the parking
lot (provided, however, maintenance and repair of the parking lot shall be subject to the
provisions of 6.03); (ii) all electrical, plumbing, HVAC and other utility systems and lines
serving the Demised Premises; (iii) exterior lighting; and (b) all refuse disposal, janitorial
services and security services for the Demised Premises.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, operating expenses to be paid by Tenant shall not include
costs incurred under Section 6.02 and any premium for any insurance policy maintained
by Landlord, which are to be at the sole cost and expense of the Landlord.

Section 4.02. Real Property Taxes.

Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that the Demised Premises is presently exempt from
Real Property Taxes, and Tenant shall continue to maintain the tax exemption of the
Property throughout the Lease Term hereof. In the event the Property or any portion
thereof becomes subject to Real Property Taxes as a result of this Lease, Tenant shall pay
said taxes when due and Tenant shall indemnify and save the Landlord harmless with
regard to said taxes for each Grand List for which property taxes are due, as well as any
interest, penalties or other expenses connected with same. “Real Property Tax” means: (i)
any fee, license fee, license tax, business license fee, commercial rental tax, levy, charge,
assessment, penalty or tax imposed by any taxing authority against the Property; (ii) any
tax on the Landlord’s right to receive, or the receipt of, rent or income from the Demised
Premises or against Landlord’s business of leasing the Demised Premises; (iii) any tax or
charge for fire protection, streets, sidewalks, road maintenance, refuse or other services
provided to the Demised Premises by any governmental agency; (iv) any tax imposed
upon this Lease or based upon a reassessment of the Demised Premises due to this Lease;
and (v) any charge or fee replacing a tax previously included within the definition of Real
Property Tax. “Real Property Tax” does not, however, include Landlord’s federal or state
income, franchise, inheritance or estate taxes.

Section 4.03. Utilities.

Tenant agrees to pay all utilities for the Demised Premises during the Lease Term. To the
extent possible, Tenant shall arrange for all utilities to be billed directly to Tenant by the
respective utility, and Tenant pay directly to the appropriate supplier the cost of all
services supplied to the Demised Premises.

Section 4.04. Insurance Policies.

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 20



(a) Liability Insurance. During the Lease Term, Tenant shall maintain a policy of
commercial general liability insurance (sometimes known as broad form comprehensive
general liability insurance) insuring Tenant against liability for bodily injury, property
damage (including loss of use of property) and personal injury arising out of the
operation, use or occupancy of the Demised Premises. Tenant shall name Landlord as
additional insured under such policy. The initial amount of such insurance shall be Two
Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence. The liability insurance obtained by Tenant
under this Section 4.04(a) shall (i) be primary and non-contributing and (ii) contain
cross-liability endorsements. Landlord may also obtain commercial general liability
insurance in an amount and with coverage determined by Landlord, insuring Landlord
against liability arising out of ownership, operation, use or occupancy of the Demised
Premises and the Property. The policy obtained by Landlord shall not be contributory and
shall not provide primary insurance.

(b) Worker’s Compensation Insurance. During the Lease Term, Tenant shall maintain
a policy of Worker’s Compensation Insurance (including employee’s Liability Insurance)
in the statutory amount covering all employees of Tenant employed at or performing
services at the Demised Premises, in order to provide the statutory benefits required by
the laws of the state in which the Demised Premises is located.

(c) Property and Rental Income Insurance. During the Lease Term, Landlord shall
maintain at Landlord’s expense policies of insurance covering loss of or damage to the
building on the Property in the full amount of its replacement value. Landlord shall have
the right to obtain flood and earthquake insurance at Landlord’s discretion or if required
by any lender holding a security interest in the Demised Premises. Landlord shall not
obtain insurance for Tenant’s fixtures or equipment installed by Tenant on the Demised
Premises. Tenant shall not do or permit anything to be done which invalidates any such
insurance policy.

(d) General Insurance Provisions

(i) Any insurance which Tenant is required to maintain under this Lease shall
include a provision which requires the insurance carrier to give Landlord not
less than thirty (30) days written notice prior to any cancellation or
modification of such coverage.

(ii) If Tenant fails to deliver any policy, certificate or renewal to Landlord
required under this Lease within the prescribed time or if any such policy is
cancelled or modified during the Lease Term without Landlord’s consent,
Landlord may obtain such insurance, in which case Tenant shall reimburse
Landlord, as Additional Rent, the cost of such insurance within thirty (30)
days after receipt of a statement that indicates the cost of such insurance.

(iii) Tenant shall maintain all insurance required under this Lease with companies
licensed in the state of Connecticut. Landlord and Tenant acknowledge the
insurance markets are rapidly changing and that insurance in the form and
amounts described in this Section 4.04 may not be available in the future. If
any time during the Lease Term, Tenant is unable to maintain the insurance
required under the Lease, Tenant shall nevertheless maintain insurance

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 21



coverage which is customary and commercially reasonable in the insurance
industry for Tenant’s type of business, as that coverage may change from time
to time. Tenant may obtain any additional property or liability insurance
which Tenant deems necessary.

(iv) Tenant waives any and all rights of recovery against Landlord, or against the
officers, employees, agents or representatives of Landlord, for loss of or
damage to its property or the property of others under its control, if such loss
or damage is covered by any insurance policy in force (whether or not
described in this Lease) or such loss or damage is required to be covered by
the terms of this Lease (whether or not actually in force) at the time of such
loss or damage. Upon obtaining the required policies of insurance, Tenant
shall give notice to the insurance carriers of this waiver or subrogation.

(v) Landlord does not waive any right of recovery against Tenant for damages
that are covered by the parish’s property insurance coverage.

ARTICLE FIVE: USE OF PROPERTY

Section 5.01. Permitted Uses.

Subject to the reservations respecting Landlord’s use described in section 5.05, Tenant
may use the Demised Premises for the Permitted Uses set forth in Section 1.07 above.

Section 5.02. Manner of Use.

Tenant shall not cause or permit the Demised Premises to be used in any way which
constitutes a violation of any law, ordinance, or governmental regulation or order or
which constitutes a nuisance or waste. Tenant shall obtain and pay for all permits,
including a Certificate of Occupancy, if required for Tenant’s occupancy of the Demised
Premises and shall take all actions necessary to comply with all applicable statutes,
ordinances, rules, regulations, orders and requirements regulating the use by Tenant of
the Demised Premises or Tenant’s business or operations.

Section 5.03. Hazardous Materials.

As used in this Lease, the term “Hazardous Material” means any flammable items,
explosives, radioactive materials, hazardous or toxic substances, material or waste or
related materials, including any substances defined as or included in the definition of
“hazardous substances”, “hazardous wastes”, “hazardous materials” or “toxic substances”
now or subsequently regulated under any applicable federal, state or local laws or
regulations, including without limitation petroleum-based products, paints, solvents, lead,
cyanide, DDT, printing inks, acids, pesticides, ammonia compounds and other chemical
products, asbestos, PCBs and similar compounds, and including any different products
and materials which are subsequently found to have adverse effect on the environment or
the health and safety or persons. Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous
Material to be generated, produced, brought upon, used, stored, treated or disposed of in
or about the Demised Premises by Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors, sublessees
or invitees without the prior written consent of Landlord, except for small amounts

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 22



customarily used by similarly situated tenants and in full compliance with law. Landlord
shall be entitled to take into account such other factors as Landlord may reasonably
determine to be relevant in determining whether to grant or withhold consent to Tenant’s
proposed activity with respect to Hazardous Material. In no event, however, shall
Landlord be required to consent to the installation or use of any storage tanks on the
Property. Tenant shall provide all information requested from time to time by Landlord,
or by any enforcement agency, including but not limited to, the Connecticut Department
of Environmental Protection within a reasonable time. Tenant shall execute and deliver
any document reasonably required in order to comply with any Environmental Law
within a reasonable time. Tenant shall promptly deliver to Landlord copies of all written
notices made by Tenant to, or received by Tenant from, any enforcement agency or from
the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration concerning
environmental matters or Hazardous Materials at the Demised Premises.

Section 5.04. Signs.

Tenant shall not place any signs on the Property without Landlord’s prior written consent,
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, denied or delayed.

The Landlord covenants that it has removed or will have removed all religious signage,
other imagery, artifacts and/or decorations from the Demised Property. In the event other
religious signage, other imagery, artifacts and/or decorations need to be removed (in
Tenant’s reasonable discretion), the Landlord will remove them at its sole cost and
expense. Prior to the execution of this Lease, Tenant shall identify in writing all of such
signage, imagery, artifacts, and/or decorations that Tenant wishes to have removed.

Section 5.05. Landlord’s Use and Access.

(a) Landlord reserves the right to use and access the Demised Premises for purposes
of utilizing the Demised Premises for its religious education and/or parish sponsored
programs. Such use shall occur only after reasonable prior notice to Tenant and
exclusively (i) on weekends, (ii) during periods when school or any after school program
is not in session, or (iii) on weeknights after 6:00 pm. Landlord shall be required to
restore the area to the same condition as prior to Landlord’s use.

(b) Landlord or its agents may enter the Demised Premises at all reasonable
times (i) to show the Demised Premises to potential buyers, investors or tenants or other
parties, (ii) to monitor Tenant’s compliance with all applicable environmental laws and
all laws governing the presence and use of Hazardous Material or (iii) for any other
purpose Landlord deems reasonably necessary. Landlord shall give Tenant reasonable
prior notice of such entry, except in the case of an emergency.

Section 5.06. Quiet Possession.

If Tenant pays the rent and complies with the terms of this Lease, Tenant may occupy and
enjoy the Demised Premises for the full Lease Term, without hindrance or molestation by

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 23



Landlord or its agents or employees and Landlord shall defend the use and occupancy by
Tenant against the lawful claims of all persons whatsoever.

Section 5.07 Landlord’s Representations and Warranties.

(a) Landlord makes the following representations, warranties and covenants
to Tenant:

(i) Landlord has good right and full power to lease to Tenant the
Demised Premises. Landlord has complete and full authority to execute this Lease and
the execution of this Lease by the undersigned has been duly authorized in accordance
with the organizational, formation or other documents governing the Landlord.

(ii) Neither the entering into of this Lease nor the consummation of the
transaction contemplated hereunder will constitute or result in a violation or breach by
Landlord of any judgment, order, writ, injunction or decree issued against or imposed
upon it, or will result in a violation of any applicable law, order rule or regulation of any
governmental or ecclesiastical authority.

(iii) The parties executing this Lease on behalf of Landlord have the
full power and authority to make this Lease the legal, valid and binding obligations of the
Landlord.

ARTICLE SIX: CONDITION OF DEMISED PREMISES; MAINTENANCE,
REPAIRS AND ALTERATIONS

Section 6.01. Existing Conditions; Alterations, Additions and Improvements

(a) Tenant accepts the Demised Premises in its condition as of the execution
of the Lease. Except as provided herein, Tenant acknowledges that neither Landlord nor
any agent of Landlord has made any representation as to the condition of the Demised
Premises or the suitability of the Demised Premises for Tenant’s intended use. Tenant
represents and warrants that Tenant has made its own inspection of and inquiry regarding
the condition of the Demised Premises. Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that the Tenant
has inspected the Demised Premises for the purpose of determining compliance with
municipal code, and that Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, shall make certain
improvements to the Demised Premises in order to occupy the Demised Premises for its
Permitted Use, which work may include providing handicap accessibility to all areas of
the building (“Tenant’s Work”) pursuant to Section 6.01(c) below.

(b) Except as provided in Section 6.01(c), below, Tenant shall not make any
alterations, additions, or improvements to the Demised Premises or the Property without
Landlord’s prior written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned, denied or delayed. Tenant shall remove any alterations, additions, or
improvements constructed in violation of this Section 6.01(b) upon Landlord’s written
request. All alterations, additions and improvements shall be done in a good and
workmanlike manner in conformity with all applicable laws and regulations.

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 24



(c) Notwithstanding any provision in this Lease to the contrary, Tenant may,
in its sole discretion, beginning on the date hereof (the “Tenant’s Work Start Date”),
undertake alterations, additions and improvements to the Demised Premises at Tenant’s
expense in order to modify any room space (including upgrading any building
components, including lighting, painting, doors, carpet, ceiling tiles, and cabling, and
installing partitions to create multiple classroom space) for its Permitted Use.

Tenant agrees that once it has initiated any Work at the Demised Premises, it will
complete it in a good and workmanlike manner at its sole cost and expense.

(d) If the Tenant shall acquire title to the Property at any time on or before the
expiration of the Lease Term (including any renewal), then all costs paid by the Tenant
during the Lease Term, including any renewal term, for building improvements approved
by Landlord in writing (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed) and construction costs and/or repairs related to Tenant’s Work approved by
Landlord in writing (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed) shall be deducted from the purchase price up to a maximum amount of Five
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) contingent upon Tenant providing written
evidence of such payment and of Landlord’s written approval of the Work, construction,
or improvements (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed).

Section 6.02. Landlord’s Obligations.

Subject to the provisions of Article Seven (Damage or Destruction) and Article Eight
(Condemnation), Landlord shall have no responsibility to repair, maintain or replace any
portion of the Demised Premises at any time during the Lease Term, except upon the
willful misconduct or negligence of Landlord, its agents or employees. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, Landlord shall be responsible, at Landlord’s sole cost and expense and
without any reimbursement obligation by Tenant for any replacements, alterations or
improvements which are capital in nature to the roof (when damage is caused by wind or
weather) and the building structure (which is defined as the footings and foundations,
supporting columns and load bearing exterior walls) and provided, however, that
Landlord shall not be responsible for any replacements, alterations or improvements
resulting from the negligence of Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors or invitees.

Section 6.03. Tenant’s Obligations.

(a) Subject to Section 6.02, Tenant shall, at Tenant’s sole expense, keep and
maintain the Demised Premises including, without limitation, all improvements thereon
and all plumbing and electrical systems and other fixtures and equipment, in good repair
and in a clean and safe condition, and repair or replace any and all of the foregoing in a
good and workmanlike manner as needed. Tenant shall, at Tenant’s sole expense, replace
all broken glass in the Demised Premises with glass of comparable quality within a
reasonable time. It is the intention of Landlord and Tenant that, at all times during the
Lease Term, Tenant shall maintain the Demised Premises in a commercially reasonable
condition. Tenant shall also be responsible for maintenance of the parking lot, driveways

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 25



and sidewalks (including snow removal); provided, however, Tenant shall not be
obligated for and shall not reimburse Landlord for any capital repair of the parking lot.

(b) Tenant shall fulfill all of Tenant’s obligations under this Section 6.03 at
Tenant’s sole expense. If Tenant fails to maintain, repair or replace the Demised Premises
as required by this Section 6.03, Landlord may, upon ten (10) days prior notice to Tenant
(except that no notice shall be required in the case of any emergency), enter the Demised
Premises and perform such maintenance or repair (including replacement, as needed) on
behalf of Tenant. In such case, Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for all costs incurred in
performing such maintenance or repair within thirty (30) days of demand. After thirty
(30) days, interest shall accrue on such unpaid balance at the rate of ten percent (10%)
per annum.

Section 6.04. Condition Upon Termination.

Upon termination or expiration of the Lease, Tenant shall surrender the Demised
Premises to Landlord, broom clean and in the same condition as received, except for the
permitted alterations described in Section 6.01 above and ordinary wear and tear. Tenant
shall not be obligated to repair any damage which Landlord is required to repair under
Article Seven (Damage or Destruction). In addition, Landlord may require Tenant to
remove any alterations, additions or improvements (other than those listed in Section
6.01) prior to the expiration of the Lease and to restore the Demised Premises to their
prior condition, all at Tenant’s expense. All alterations, additions and improvements
which Landlord has not required Tenant to remove shall become Landlord’s property and
shall be surrendered to Landlord upon the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease,
except that Tenant may remove any of Tenant’s business equipment which can be
removed without material damage to the Demised Premises. Tenant shall repair, at
Tenant’s expense, any damage to the Demised Premises caused by the removal of any
such equipment. In no event, however, shall Tenant remove any of the following
materials or equipment (which shall be deemed Landlord’s property) without Landlord’s
prior written consent; any power wiring or wiring panels; lighting or lighting fixtures,
wall coverings, drapes, blinds or other window coverings, carpets or other floor
coverings, heaters, air conditioners or any other heating or aid conditioning equipment,
fencing or security gates; or other similar building operating equipment and decorations.
In no event shall Landlord’s consent be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, denied or
delayed.

ARTICLE SEVEN: DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION

Section 7.01. Partial Damage to Demised Premises.

(a) Tenant shall notify Landlord in writing immediately upon the occurrence
of any material damage to the Demised Premises that is the responsibility of Landlord to
repair hereunder. If the Demised Premises is only partially damaged (less than 50%) and
if the proceeds received by Landlord from the insurance policies described in Section
4.04(c) are sufficient to pay for the necessary repairs, this Lease shall remain in effect and
Landlord shall fully repair the damage as soon as reasonably possible.

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 26



(b) If the insurance proceeds received by Landlord are not sufficient to pay
the entire cost of repair that is the Landlord’s responsibility to repair hereunder, of if the
cause of the damage is not covered by the insurance policies which Landlord or Tenant
maintains, Landlord may elect either to (i) fully repair the damage as soon as reasonable
possible at Landlord’s sole cost and expense, in which case this Lease shall remain in full
force and effect, or (ii) terminate this Lease as of the date the damage occurred. Landlord
shall notify Tenant within forty-five (45) days after receipt of notice of the occurrence of
the damage whether Landlord elects to repair the damage or terminate the Lease. Tenant
shall have the right to terminate this Lease in the event the Property has not been repaired
within one hundred twenty (120) days after occurrence of the damage.

(c) If the damage to the Demised Premises occurs during the last six (6)
months of the Lease Term and such damage will require more than thirty (30) days to
repair, either Landlord or Tenant may elect to terminate this Lease as of the date the
damage occurred. The party electing to terminate this Lease shall give written
notification to the other party of such election with thirty (30) days after Tenant’s notice
to Landlord of the occurrence of the damage, provided Landlord has not commenced
repair of the damages and is not diligently undertaking the repair of the Property.

Section 7.02. Substantial or Total Destruction.

If the Demised Premises is substantially or totally destroyed by any cause whatsoever and
in which case the insurance proceeds are insufficient to repair (i.e., the damage to the
Demised Premises is greater than partial damage as described in Section 7.01), the Lease
shall terminate as of the date the destruction occurred. Notwithstanding the preceding
sentence, if the Demised Premises can be rebuilt within four (4) months after the date of
destruction, Landlord may elect to rebuild the Demised Premises at Landlord’s own
expense, in which case this Lease shall remain in full force and effect. Landlord shall
notify Tenant of such election with thirty (30) days after Tenant’s notice of the occurrence
of total or substantial destruction.

Section 7.03. Temporary Reduction of Rent.

If the Demised Premises is destroyed or damaged and Landlord or Tenant repairs or
restores the Demised Premises pursuant to the provisions of this Article Seven, any rent
payable during the period of such damage, repair and/or restoration shall be reduced
according to the degree, if any, to which Tenant’s use of the Demised Premises is
impaired.

ARTICLE EIGHT: CONDEMNATION

Section 8.01. Condemnation. If all or any portion of the Demised Premises is taken
under the power of eminent domain or sold under the threat of that power (all of which
are called “Condemnation”), this Lease shall terminate as to the part taken or sold on the
date the condemning authority takes title or possession, whichever occurs first. If (i) more
than twenty percent (20%) of the floor area of the building on the Property or (ii) a
material part of that portion of the parking lot being used by Tenant, is taken, either
Landlord or Tenant may terminate this Lease as of the date the condemning authority

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 27



takes title or possession, by delivering written notice to the other within ten (10) days
after receipt of written notice of such taking (or in the absence of such notice, within ten
(10) days after the condemning authority takes title or possession). If neither Landlord
nor Tenant terminates this Lease, this Lease shall remain in effect as to the portion of the
Demised Premises not taken, except that the Base Rent shall be reduced in proportion to
the reduction in the floor area of the Demised Premises. Tenant may file such claims
with the condemning authority as may be permitted by applicable law for removal
expenses, business dislocation damages, and moving expenses. If this Lease is not
terminated, Landlord shall repair promptly any damage to the Demised Premises caused
by the Condemnation.

ARTICLE NINE: ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

Section 9.01 Landlord’s Consent Required. No portion of the Demised Premises or of
Tenant’s interest in this Lease may be acquired by any other person or entity, whether by
sale, assignment, mortgage, sublease, transfer, operation of law, or act of Tenant, without
Landlord’s prior written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned, denied or delayed. Landlord’s refusal to provide consent based on the
teachings of the Church shall not be deemed unreasonable.

Section 9.02. No Release of Tenant. No transfer permitted by this Article Nine, whether
with or without Landlord’s consent, shall release Tenant or change Tenant’s primary
liability to pay the rent and to perform all other obligations of Tenant under this Lease.
Landlord’s acceptance of rent from any other person is not a waiver of any provision of
this Article Nine. Consent to one transfer is not consent to any subsequent transfer. If
Tenant’s transferee defaults under this Lease, Landlord may proceed directly against
Tenant without pursuing remedies against the transferee. Landlord may consent to
subsequent assignments or modifications of this Lease by Tenant’s transferee, without
notifying Tenant or obtaining its consent. Such action shall not relieve Tenant’s liability
under this Lease.

ARTICLE TEN: DEFAULTS; REMEDIES

Section 10.01. Covenants and Conditions. Tenant’s performance of each of Tenant’s
obligations under this Lease is a condition of Tenant’s right to continue in possession of
the Demised Premises.

Section 10.02. Defaults. Tenant shall be in default under this Lease (“Default”):

(a) If Tenant abandons the Demised Premises or if Tenant vacates the
Demised Premises after the Commencement Date;

(b) if Tenant fails to pay rent or any other charge within ten (10) business days
of when due; or

(c) if Tenant fails to perform any of Tenant’s non-monetary obligations under
this Lease for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from Landlord; provided

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 28



that if more than thirty (30) days are required to complete such performance, Tenant shall
not be in default if Tenant commences such performance within the thirty (30) day period
and thereafter diligently pursues its completion.

Section 10.03. Remedies. On the occurrence of any Default by Tenant, Landlord may, at
any time thereafter, with or without notice or demand and without limiting Landlord in
the exercise of any right or remedy which Landlord may have:

(a) Terminate Tenant’s right to possession of the Demised Premises by any
lawful means, in which case this Lease shall terminate and Tenant shall surrender
possession of the Demised Premises to Landlord. In such event, Landlord shall be
entitled to recover from Tenant all damages incurred by Landlord by reason of Tenant’s
Default, including (i) any unpaid Base Rent and Additional Rent which Landlord has
earned at the time of the termination; (ii) the amount by which the unpaid Base Rent and
Additional Rent which Landlord would have earned after termination until such costs
exceed the amount of such rental loss that Tenant proves Landlord could have reasonably
avoided; and (iii) any other obligations Landlord incurs in maintaining or preserving the
Demised Premises after such Default, the cost of recovering possession of the Demised
Premises, expenses of reletting, including necessary renovation or alteration of the
Demised Premises and any real estate commission paid or payable. If Tenant has
abandoned the Demised Premises, Landlord shall have the option of (i) retaking
possession of the Demised Premises and recovering from Tenant the amount specified in
this Section 10.03(a), or (ii) proceeding under Section 10.03(b);

(b) Maintain Tenant’s right to possession, in which case this Lease shall
continue in effect whether or not Tenant has abandoned the Demised Premises. In such
event Landlord shall be entitled to enforce all of Landlord’s rights and remedies under
this Lease, including the right to recover the rent as it becomes due.

(c) Pursue any other remedy nor or hereafter available to Landlord under the
laws or judicial decisions of the state in which the Demised Premises is located.

ARTICLE ELEVEN: PROTECTION OF LENDERS

Section 11.01. Subordination. This Lease shall be automatically subject and subordinate
to any existing or future ground lease, deed of trust or mortgage encumbering the
Demised Premises, any advances made on the security thereof, whenever made or
recorded. Tenant shall cooperate with Landlord and any lender which is acquiring a
security interest in the Demised Premises or the Lease. Tenant shall execute such further
documents and assurance as such lender may require, provided that Tenant’s obligations
under this Lease shall not be increased in any material way, and Tenant shall not be
deprived of its rights under this Lease. If any ground lessor, beneficiary or mortgagee
elects not have this Lease prior to the lien of its ground lease, deed of trust or mortgage
and gives written notice thereof to Tenant, this Lease shall be deemed prior to such
ground lease, deed of trust or mortgage whether this Lease is dated prior or subsequent to
the date of said ground lease, deed of trust or mortgage or the date of recording thereof.

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 29



Section 11.02. Attornment. If Landlord’s interest in the Demised Premises is acquired
by any ground lessor, beneficiary under a deed of trust, mortgagee, or purchaser at a
foreclosure sale, Tenant shall, at the election of such ground lessor, beneficiary under a
deed of trust, mortgagee, or purchaser at a foreclosure sale, attorn to the transferee of or
successor to Landlord’s interest in the Demised Premises and recognize such transferee or
successor as Landlord under this Lease. Tenant waives the protection of any statute or
rule of law which gives or purports to give Tenant any right to terminate this Lease or
surrender possession of the Demised Premises upon the transfer of Landlord’s interest.

Section 11.03. Signing of Documents. Upon written request, Tenant shall sign and
deliver any instrument or documents necessary or appropriate to evidence any such
attornment or subordination or agreement to do so.

Section 11.04. Estoppel Certificates. Upon Landlord’s written request, Tenant shall
execute, acknowledge and deliver to Landlord a written statement certifying: (i) this
Lease is unmodified (or if modified, stating any amendments hereto); (ii) that this Lease
has not been cancelled or terminated; (iii) the last date of payment of the Base Rent and
other charges and the time period covered by such payment; (iv) that Landlord is not in
default under this Lease (or if Landlord is claimed to be in default, stating why); and (v)
such other representations or information with respect to Tenant or the Lease as Landlord
may reasonably request or which any prospective purchaser or encumbrancer of the
Demised Premises may require. Tenant shall deliver such statement to Landlord within
thirty (30) days after Landlord’s request. Landlord may give any such statement by
Tenant to any prospective purchaser or encumbrancer of the Demised Premises. Such
purchaser or encumbrancer may rely conclusively upon such statement as true and
correct.

ARTICLE TWELVE: LEGAL COSTS

Section 12.01. Legal Proceedings. If Tenant or Landlord shall be in breach or default
under this Lease, such party (the “Defaulting Party”) shall reimburse the other party (the
“Nondefaulting Party”) upon demand for any costs or expenses that the Nondefaulting
Party incurs in connection with any breach or default of the Defaulting Party under this
Lease, whether or not suit is commenced or judgment entered. Such cost shall include
reasonable, actual, out of pocket legal fees and costs incurred for the negotiation of a
settlement, enforcement of rights or otherwise. Furthermore, if any action for breach of or
to enforce the provisions of this Lease is commenced, the court in such action shall award
to the party in whose favor a judgment is entered, a reasonable sum as settlement,
enforcement of rights or otherwise. Furthermore, if any action for breach of or to enforce
the provisions of this Lease is commenced, the court in such action shall award to the
party in whose favor a judgment is entered, a reasonable sum as attorneys’ fees and costs.
The losing party in such action shall pay such attorneys’ fees and costs.

ARTICLE THIRTEEN: PURCHASE OPTION

Section 13.01. Purchase Option. Upon the expiration of the term of this Lease or
Tenant’s option to renew, Tenant shall have the option to purchase the Demised Premises

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 30



and the convent building located on the Property, provided the parties can agree upon a
purchase price in writing within three (3) months of the date of the execution of this
Lease (the parties agree to negotiate in good faith to arrive at such purchase price) and
provided the Landlord obtains all required Canonical approvals for the sale transaction
within 45 days thereafter. The Landlord agrees to use commercially reasonable efforts
and diligence to secure such Canonical approvals. To exercise such option to purchase,
Tenant must not be in default of its obligations hereunder, and must provide written
notice at least sixty (60) days prior to the termination of the lease term or prior to the
expiration of the option to renew contained in Section 2.02 hereof, and the closing must
occur within sixty (60) days after the expiration of the lease term or of option to renew
contained in Section 2.02 hereof.

ARTICLE FOURTEEN: MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 14.01. Landlord’s Liability: Certain Duties.

(a) As used in this Lease, the term “Landlord” means only the current owner
or owners of the fee title to the Demised Premises or the Property or the leasehold estate
under a ground lease of the Demised Premises or Property at the time in question. Each
Landlord is obligated to perform the obligations of Landlord under this Lease only during
the time such Landlord owns such interest or title. Any Landlord who transfers its title or
interest to a third party is relieved of all liability with respect to the obligations of
Landlord under this Lease to be performed on or after the date of transfer. However, each
Landlord shall deliver to its transferee the security deposit, if any, that Tenant previously
paid if such funds have not yet been applied under the terms of this Lease.

(b) Tenant shall give written notice of any failure by Landlord to perform any of its
obligations under this Lease to Landlord and to any ground lessor, mortgagee or
beneficiary under any deed of trust encumbering the Demised Premises whose name and
address have been furnished to Tenant in writing. Landlord shall not be in default under
this Lease unless Landlord (or such ground lessor, mortgagee or beneficiary) fails to cure
such non-performance within thirty (30) days after receipt of Tenant’s notice. However, if
such non-performance reasonably requires more than thirty (30) days to cure, Landlord
shall not be default if such cure is commenced within such thirty (30) day period and
thereafter diligently pursue to completion.

(c) Notwithstanding any term or provision herein to the contrary, the liability of
Landlord for the performance of its duties and obligations under this Lease is limited to
Landlord’s interest in the Demised Premises and the Property, and neither the Landlord
nor its partners, shareholders, officers or other principals shall have any personal liability
under this Lease.

Section 14.02. Severability. A determination by a court of competent jurisdiction that
any provision of this Lease or any part thereof is illegal or unenforceable shall not cancel
or invalidate the remainder of such provision of this Lease, which shall remain in full
force and effect.

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 31



Section 14.03. Interpretation. The captions of the Articles or Sections of this Lease are
to assist the parties in reading this Lease and are not a part of the terms of provisions of
this Lease. Whenever required by the context of this Lease, the singular shall include the
plural and the plural shall include the singular. The masculine, feminine and neuter
genders shall each include the other, in any provision relating to the conduct, acts or
omissions of Tenant, the term “Tenant” shall include Tenant’s agents, employees,
students, contractors, invitees, successors or others using the Demised Premises with
Tenant’s expressed or implied permission.

Section 14.04. Incorporation of Prior Agreements; Modifications. This Lease is the only
agreement between the parties pertaining to the lease of the Demised Premises and no
other agreements are effective. All amendments to the Lease shall be in writing and
signed by all parties. Any other attempted amendment shall be void.

Section 14.05. Notices. All notices required or permitted under this Lease shall be in
writing and shall be personally delivered or sent by certified mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid. Notices to Tenant shall be delivered to:

Consolidated School District of New Britain
272 Main Street
PO Box 1960
New Britain, Connecticut 06050
Attention: Kevin Kane, Business Manager

With a copy to:

Shipman & Goodwin LLP
One Constitution Plaza
Hartford, Connecticut 06103
Attention: Kevin Roy, Esq.

Notices to Landlord shall be delivered to the address specified in section 1.02 above with
a copy to The Hartford Roman Catholic Diocesan Corporation, 134 Farmington Avenue,
Hartford, Connecticut 06105 Attn: Finance Office. All notices shall be effective upon
delivery. Either party may change its notice address upon written notice to the other party.

Section 14.06. Waivers. All waivers must be in writing and signed by the waiving party.
Landlord’s failure to enforce any provision of this Lease or its acceptance of rent shall
not be a waiver and shall not prevent Landlord from enforcing that provision or any other
provision of this Lease in the future.

Section 14.07. No Recordation. Tenant shall not record this Lease without prior written
consent from Landlord, such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned,
denied or delayed, but Tenant shall be entitled to record a notice or memorandum hereof,
which Landlord agrees it shall sign.

Section 14.08. Binding Effect: Choice of Law. This Lease binds any party who legally
acquires any rights or interest in this Lease from Landlord or Tenant. However, Landlord

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 32



shall have no obligation to Tenant’s successor unless the rights or interests of Tenant’s
successor are acquired in accordance with the terms of this Lease. The laws of the state in
which the Demised Premises is located (Connecticut) shall govern this Lease.

Section 14.09. Force Majeure. If Landlord or Tenant (except Tenant’s failure to pay rent
or any other financial obligation under the Lease) cannot perform any of its obligations
due to events beyond their control (the time provided for performing such obligations
shall be extended by a period of time equal to the duration of such events. Events beyond
the parties control include, but are not limited to, acts of God, war, civil commotion,
labor disputes, strikes, fire, flood or other casualty, shortages of labor or material,
government regulation, order or restriction and weather conditions.

Section 14.10. Execution of Lease. This Lease may be executed in counterparts and,
when all counterpart documents are executed, the counterparts shall constitute a single
binding instrument. Landlord’s delivery of this Lease to Tenant shall not be deemed to be
an offer to lease and shall not be binding upon either party until executed and delivery by
both parties. A facsimile, copy or .pdf signature shall have the same force and effect as an
original signature.

Section 14.11. Survival. All representations and warranties of Landlord and Tenant shall
survive the termination of this Lease.

Section 14.12. No Brokers. Each of Tenant and Landlord represents and warrants that
there are no agents, brokers, finders or other parties with whom either party has dealt who
may be entitled to any commission or fee with respect to this Lease or the Demised
Premises. The parties agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless from any claim,
demand, cost or liability asserted by any party based upon dealings of that party.

Section 14.13.Tenant’s Indemnification of Landlord. Tenant shall indemnify, defend
and hold harmless Landlord from and against any and all loss, claims, liability or costs
(including court costs and attorneys’ fees) incurred by reason of (a) any damage to any
property (including but not limited to property of the Landlord) or any injury (including
but not limited to death) to any person occurring in, on or about the Demised Premises to
the extent that such injury or damage shall be caused by or arise from the negligence or
intentional misconduct of Tenant, its agents, or employees, students, guests, customers,
licensees, or invitees; or (b) any breach or default on the part of Tenant in the
performance of any covenant or agreement on the part of the Tenant to be performed
pursuant to this Lease. The provisions of this Section 14.13 will survive termination of
this Lease with respect to any claims or liability accruing prior to such termination.

Section 14.14.Landlord’s Indemnification of Tenant. Landlord shall indemnify,
defend and hold harmless Tenant from and against any and all loss, claims, liability or
costs (including court costs and attorneys’ fees) incurred by reason of (a) any damage to
any property (including but not limited to property of the Tenant) or any injury (including
but not limited to death) to any person occurring in, on or about the Demised Premises to
the extent that such injury or damage shall be caused by or arise from the negligence or
intentional misconduct of Landlord, its agents, or employees, students, guests, customers,
licensees, or invitees; or (b) any breach or default on the part of Landlord in the

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 33



performance of any covenant or agreement on the part of the Landlord to be performed
pursuant to this Lease. The provisions of this Section 14.14 will survive termination of
this Lease with respect to any claims or liability accruing prior to such termination.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

{W0756438.1} 9844675v7 34



Landlord and Tenant have signed this Lease as of the day and year first above
written.

Landlord
The Church of the Holy Cross

By: ____________________________________
Name:
Its:

Tenant
Consolidated School District of New Britain

By: ____________________________________
Name: Merrill Gay
Its: President, Board of Education

{W0756438.1} [Signature Page to Lease] 35



{W0756438.1} 36



 
 
 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

37



New Britain Board of Education 
Gayle Sanders-Connolly – President l Merrill Gay – Vice President l Joseph Listro – Secretary 

Anthony Cane | Monica Dawkins | Anthony Kane | Matthew Marino | Annie S. Parker | Diana Reyes | Tina Santana 

 

 
 
 

New Britain Board of Education Finance, Facilities, 
and Transportation Committee Meeting 

April 24, 2023 – 6:15 PM l New Britain Educational Administration Center 
 

 

Finance Chair Mr. Anthony Cane, called the meeting to order at 6:26PM. 
 
Board Members Present 
Mr. Anthony Cane, Ms. Gayle Sanders-Connolly, Ms. Monica Dawkins, and Ms. Annie Parker. 
 
CSDNB Staff Present 
Ms. Ann Alfano, Ms. Amy Anderson, Ms. Kim Billy, Ms. Lara Bohlke, Ms. Kristina DeNegre, Ms. Aja Edwards, Dr. Anthony 
Gasper, Ms. Rebecca Gonzalez, Ms. Wanda Lickwar, Ms. Maryellen Manning, Mr. Andrew Mazzei, Ms. Silvia Molina-Mayo, 
Mr. Jeffrey Prokop, Mr. Tyrone Richardson, Dr. Nicole Sanders, Ms. Sondra Sanford*, Ms. Danielle Singleton, Mr. Mark 
Spalding, Ms. Jennifer Wright, and Ms. Ivelise Velazquez. 
 
 

 1. Presentation 
 
Presentation: Informational Presentation - Special Education Private Placement Costs April 2023 
Submitted by Mr. Mark Spalding  
 

 2. New Business 

 
Review and Approve Minutes from Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee Meeting on March 27, 2023 
Submitted by Ms. Aja Edwards 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Facilities/IT Update  
Presented by Ms. Rebecca Gonzalez and Mr. Jeff Prokop 
See Presentation 

 
Partnerships: Accept Donation from Schaller Subaru for 6 Deserving Educators for the 2023-2024 School Year 
($3,000.00) 
Submitted by Mr. Andrew Mazzei 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Partnerships: Accept Donation for “Dress with Success” Mock Interviews to Prepare Students for Jobs – Brookside School 
($1,500.00)  
Submitted by Mr. Jason Miramant 
 Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

Call to Order and Opening 

38



New Britain Board of Education 
Gayle Sanders-Connolly – President l Merrill Gay – Vice President l Joseph Listro – Secretary 

Anthony Cane | Monica Dawkins | Anthony Kane | Matthew Marino | Annie S. Parker | Diana Reyes | Tina Santana 

 

Partnerships: Accept Donation from Tomasso Brothers Inc. for Road to Recovery Homeless Program - Districtwide 
($500.00) 
Submitted by Mr. Joe Vaverchak 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Partnerships: Accept Donation from First Tee Golf & Ryan Pinard, Daniel Salerno & Len Corto for Girls Golf Team Supplies 
($2,000.00) 
Submitted by Ms. Lisa Kawecki  
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Partnerships: Approve Bid Award Between Master Yousef and CSDNB for Summer Services to SEE & SAIL Program – 
Smalley Elementary School ($16,200.00)  
Submitted by Ms. Mayra Rodriguez l Funding Source: ARP Homeless Children and Youth Grant Professional and Technical Services 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Partnerships: Approve Contract/MOU Between CSDNB and The City of New Britain Parks, Recreation, and Community 
Services to Provide Wraparound Services Needed for Homeless Students and Families in the District ($80,000.00) 
Submitted by Ms. Daisy Sanchez l Funding Source: ARP Homeless Grant 2058-969-10002-55050 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Operations: Approve Purchase Order and Bid Waiver of New Chromebooks Needed for Online Assessments, Classroom 
Tasks, Assignments, and Enrichments for our Students – Slade Middle School ($49,950.00) 
Submitted by Mr. Andrew Mazzei l Funding Source: Commissioner's Network 2348052100001-56110 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Operations: Approve contract between Huron Studer Education Services and CSDNB for Annual Parent and Employee 
Survey ($18,000) 
Submitted by Dr. Nicole Sanders l Funding Source: Alliance 23419691001-53500 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Operations: Approve Purchase Order of New Chromebooks Needed for Online Assessments, Classroom Tasks, 
Assignments, and Enrichments for our Students – Pulaski Middle School (49,950.00) 
Submitted by Mr. Alejandro Ortiz l Funding Source: Commissioner's Network Grant 234705310001-57243 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Operations: Approve Purchase Order for Yearly Renewal of Destiny Library and Resource Manager Services – 
Districtwide ($24,375.02) 
Submitted by Mr. Jeff Prokop l Funding Source: MIS Software Budget 101092110000-53510 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Partnerships: Approve Purchase Order Between Modern Classroom Project and CSDNB for Services Rendered Through 
Virtual Professional Development Training for 60 Teachers – Districtwide ($43,750.00)  
Submitted by Mr. Tyrone Richardson l Funding Source: 101096122004-53200 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

39



New Britain Board of Education 
Gayle Sanders-Connolly – President l Merrill Gay – Vice President l Joseph Listro – Secretary 

Anthony Cane | Monica Dawkins | Anthony Kane | Matthew Marino | Annie S. Parker | Diana Reyes | Tina Santana 

 

Operations: Approve Purchase Order Between Amplify and CSDNB for K-3 Comprehensive Literacy Assessment – 
Districtwide ($151,880.70)   
Submitted by Ms. Ivelise Velasquez l Funding Source: ARPA - Priority School Districts and Faith Acts 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Operations: Approve Bid Award and Contract Between Mail and Media Courier Services and CSDNB for Courier 
Services – Districtwide ($121,436.42) 
Submitted by Ms. Ann Alfano l Funding Source: Local Budget 101091125900-53500 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Approve Purchase Order for Student Planners for All Students Grades 3-8 – Districtwide ($21,194.28) 
Submitted by Ms. Lara Bohlke l Funding Source: Title 1 - Other supplies 201196910001-56900 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
Approve Purchase Order and Bid Waiver Between HB Live and CSDNB for LED Screens and Broadcast Video Equipment – 
NBHS ($34,139.00) 
Submitted by Mr. Robert Smedley l Funding Source: NBHS Graduation Account 101006124001-58200 
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Operations: Accept Financial Report – March 31, 2023 
Submitted by Ms. Ann Alfano  
Mr. Cane motioned to add this item to the Board’s Consent Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting in May. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 
 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:19 PM.

Closing and Adjournment 

40



FACILITIES UPDATES

May 2023 41



Master Facilities Plan

● Pre-Survey Questionnaire:
○ Facilities is completing one for each location. They will be used for inspections during the upcoming facility site 

visits.
● Facility Condition Assessments & Energy Analysis Site Visits:

○ June - July (see schedule provided)
● Stakeholder Meetings Groups & Meetings:

○ Groups include; student & families, staff members, city gov. representatives including the Mayor and City Council 
members, and the BOE members.

○ Meetings to be held prior to last day of schools for students, families, and staff and by end of June for remaining 
groups.

42



Master Facilities Plan - Facility Site Visits

43



Security Audit 

● Security School Site Visit Audits have been completed.

● Survey data has been collected.

● Stakeholder interviews are occurring through the month of May and will continue through the end of 
June.

● Deliverables/Presentations slotted for July.

44



Office of School Construction & Grants Review - Project Closings

● Gaffney Renovation Project Close out The revised report for payment of $2,133,778 was approved by the School 
Building Committee and the Superintendent. The report has been forwarded to the Office of School Construction & 
Grants for processing. 

● Remaining Close-Outs we have (5) more projects to close out. The remaining payout is for the 5% retainer held at the 
end of the projects until the project has officially been closed. The facilities office has identified filing cabinets in our
Gates Building that include documentation related to all projects. We are sorting through the filing and will forward any 
bid related docs, invoicing, and are working with City Finance Dept. to obtain the city ledgers for all projects. 

45



Holmes Elementary Renovation

Holmes Elementary Renovation:

○ April 20th 
The Standing Subcommittee of the Common Council Committee appropriates $70 million for 
the project.

○ May 5th 
The grant application is submitted to the Office of School Construction Grants & Review.

○ Project Timeline 
Planning underway to begin with Advertising RFQ for the Architectural Services. 

○ Next Steps
Project Timeline Draft and building fly by to be shared during our next FF&T Committee 
Meeting.

46



Slade Roof Replacement & HVAC Upgrades 

● Slade Roof Construction Bid was held end of April. 

● Slade Roof Bid Award lowest most responsible bidder selected for the project, Greenwood 
Industries

● SBC Approves Bid Award during the May 15th, meeting.

● Slade Roof & HVAC Contracts City Corp Council has reviewed the AIA contracts for both the roof and 
hvac upgrades. Final contracts have been issued and have been shared with the companies (Action 
Air and Greenwood Industries), for signatures.

● Summer Work will start immediately after the last day of school.

47



Food Services Updates

48



49



50



140 Freezer Budget

51

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/19pxFxiyrN-c33coFKgqrquaEvTaZRx3SQ8Q8R2K2lQk/edit?usp=sharing


52



53



54



55



56



57



IT UPDATES

May 2023 58



STAFF HELP DESK TICKETS
Ticket Closure Goal

Within 7 Days: 79.7%
Within 2 Days: 58.1%
Within  1  Day: 47.3% 59



STUDENT TECH HELP TICKETS

● Students Insured: 1764 (+500 vs last year)
● Claims Served: 1342

Insurance Claim Type Count % of Claims

CLAIM Broken keyboard 174 12.97%

CLAIM Cracked screen 620 46.20%

CLAIM Internal damage 262 19.52%

CLAIM Replacement Charger 263 19.60%

CLAIM Replacement protective case 23 1.71%

Grand Total 1342 100.00%

Ticket Issue Type Count

Account Issue 200
Charger or Case Issue 373
Damaged Device 1290
Destroyed Device 16
Lost Device 856
Performance Issue 1347
Grand Total 4082

60



STUDENT TECH HELP TICKETS

61



ADDITIONAL PROJECTS

Copier Fleet and Services RFP

The district released the RFP for copier fleet and services March 17. 
Proposals were submitted April 14th.

May 3 Selected vendors came on site for presentations to the 
district Copier Services RFP committee. 

This meeting paperwork has been included seeking approval to 
proceed with the selected vendor. 

We anticipate refreshing the aging copier fleet during the summer.  

Projector Replacement
The punch list and final closeout invoicing are 
finally completed! 

The project has moved to beginning phases of 
training and support, which are in the initial 
stages of planning and resource creation.

Support materials will include both video and 
written documentation used for both individual 
and group training.

Resources will be housed in our staff portal in 
the Technology Section. 

Student Devices

The department is taking back all fifth grade chromebooks at the 
end of the school year. Devices will be assessed and used 
accordingly based on condition.

Students will receive a replacement device at the start of the 2023-
24 school year at the middle school.

Purchase Order paperwork is included in this board packet for 
purchasing of both touchscreen and non touchscreen 
chromebooks.

Security/Antivirus

The network team within the 
department has researched and 
reviewed multiple products in 
preparation for a summer deployment. 
Paperwork is included in this 
meeting’s packet for the Board’s 
consideration.

62



63



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Mayra Rodriguez () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on June 5, 2023.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Ann Alfano Staff Presenter: Mayra Rodriguez

Type of Memorandum

Acceptance of Donation

Background and Purpose/Rationale

A grant in the amount of $10,000 was awarded from The Petit Foundation to help support the 3 week
CREATE summer program. Funds will be used to support the Community Based Organizations providing
enrichment activities for summer participants throughout the full day. Through collaborations with
Community Organizations, students are provided with educational, yet fun, hands-on learning activities
that help support student learning.

Financial Information

The total is grant donation is $10,000.00

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee on May 30, 2023

Petit Foundation Award Letter - Mayra Rodriguez.pdf

64

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1TwXO060sxM18X8fJaGoEmAiv6FAztY65/view?usp=drivesdk


Board Memorandum
Submitted by Joe Vaverchak () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on June 5, 2023.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Ann Alfano Staff Presenter: Joe Vaverchak

Type of Memorandum

Acceptance of Donation

Background and Purpose/Rationale

A donation was made in the amount of $2,000.00 from the First Church of Christ, Congregational for
Youth Homeless Road to Recovery Program.

Financial Information

The total donation is $2,000.00

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee on May 31, 2023

Donation - Mayra Rodriguez.pdf

65

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1b8CEw_Okz8RRDDWYvuIvXlwSbQAwQQBN/view?usp=drivesdk


66



67



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Mayra Rodriguez () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on June 5, 2023.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Ann Alfano Staff Presenter: Mayra Rodriguez

Type of Memorandum

Grant Award

Background and Purpose/Rationale

A grant in the amount of $50,000 was awarded from The Fund for Greater Hartford to help support the 3
week SEE and CREATE summer programs. Funds will be used to support the Community Based
Organizations providing enrichment activities for summer participants throughout the full day. Through
collaborations with Community Organizations, students are provided with educational, hands-on
learning activities that help support student learning.

Financial Information

The total grant is $50,000.00

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee on May 31, 2023

Fund for Greater Hartford - Mayra Rodriguez.pdf

68

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1alRy6lykam5TAlpyJcy0JYIjCeUmj9VX/view?usp=drivesdk


 
May 19, 2023 
 
Consolidated School District of New Britain  
227 Main Street 
New Britain, CT 06050 
 
Dear Ms. Rodriguez,  
 
On behalf of the Board of Trustees of The Fund for Greater Hartford, I am pleased to share that your 
organization has received an award. Please refer to the attached grant agreement for award details. The grant 
agreement must be signed and returned via email no later than June 1, 2023.  
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me directly at 860-232-3113 or 
krusso@fundforgreaterhartford.org.  
 
 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
 
Kimberley Russo 
Executive Director  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 69



 
Please sign and email a copy no later than June 1, 2023 to krusso@fundforgreaterhartford.org. 

 

Agency Name: Consolidated School District of New Britain 

Program/Project Name: Summer Enrichment Experience (SEE) 

Award Amount: $50,000 

Grant Requirements:   

• This grant is made exclusively for the purposes outlined in the submitted grant proposal. It is the grantee’s 
responsibility to notify The Fund for Greater Hartford (The Fund) if there are any changes in this plan or 
any circumstances that would affect its fulfillment, including any significant shifts in funding.  
 

• Awards must be expended by May 31, 2024. Any grant funds not expended or committed for the purposes 
of the grant must be returned to The Fund unless the grantee has received prior written approval to 
extend the funds. 

 
• This award is a one-year award and the opportunity to apply for continued funding is not guaranteed.  

 
• The final report will be due in the April 2024. Details on report submission will be shared prior to the due 

date. 
 
• The Fund may monitor and conduct a review of your operations under this grant, which may include a visit 

by The Fund personnel to observe your program, discuss the program and its finances with your personnel, 
and review financial and other records and materials connected with the activities financed by the grant. 

 
• The Fund may include information about this grant on its website. The Fund for Greater Hartford’s name 

and logo may be included on the grantee’s website and materials as appropriate. Notify staff prior to 
referencing The Fund in print, radio, television and electronic media. 

 
• Grantees are expected to demonstrate in all aspects of their operations full compliance with legislation 

prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, sexual preference, or 
disability. Further, it is expected that grantees will actively seek diversity in their governance and program 
staff. 

 
• There must be no change in the grantee’s qualification as an organization exempt from income taxation 

pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Code or its classification as not a private 
foundation.  

 

• Grantee agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Foundation and its directors, officers, agents, 
representatives and employees against any and all direct and third-party suits, claims, or liabilities of any 70



nature arising out of, or as consequence of, any act, omission, or breach of this Agreement by Grantee 
and/or Grantee’s directors, officers, agents, representatives or employees.  Furthermore, Grantee agrees 
to reimburse the Foundation for any loss, cost, injury, damage or other expense incurred by the 
Foundation of any nature arising out of, or as consequence of, any act, omission, or breach of this 
Agreement by Grantee and/or Grantee’s directors, officers, agents, representatives or employees, 
including, but not limited to, misappropriation of Foundation financial assets or Grant funds.  This Section 
15 shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 

I understand and agree to the terms of the grant agreement and will share this information with other agency 
representatives as appropriate. 

 

_______________________________________                  _______________________ 

Executive Director (signature)                  Date 

 

_______________________________________ 

Print Name 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

71



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Rebecca Gonzalez () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on June 5, 2023.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Tony Gasper Staff Presenter: Rebecca Gonzalez

Type of Memorandum

Purchase Order

Background and Purpose/Rationale

The vendor is under a bidding consortium for this work per DPH.

CT Feminine Care Act - Accessibility to feminine hygiene products from grades (3-12).
Seeking approval from the board for the high school purchase order as it is the only school above the 15k
threshold.

All of the other schools are under 15k. The Act calls for all schools to be ready with supplies by July 1.
Some funding for the supplies and services is being provided through a grant and is being managed by
the Department of Public Health.

Financial Information

The total is $18,202.08 and the funding source is State grant and Facilities 56101.

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee on May 30, 2023

Citron Hygiene agreement - 5.4.23 - Rebecca Gonzalez.pdf

72

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1AZmj59L5ETVD9oZvNhr16nqIL1ADEojq/view?usp=drivesdk


CUSTOMER AGREEMENT

Created Date 2023-May-1
Expiration Date 2023-May-31

Issued From 13 Linnell Circle
Billerica, MA 01821

Term (Months) 36
Agreement # CA-0451060
Cust. Order # CO-0451060

Prepared By Marcelo Leone Prepared For Christopher Aucoin
Phone +1 (860) 982-7576 Phone 860-505-9723
Email mleone@citronhygiene.com Email aucoin@csdnb.org

Customer New Britain High School Location New Britain High School
Customer Address 110 Mill Street

New Britain, Connecticut
06051
United States

Location Address 110 Mill Street
New Britain, Connecticut
06051
United States

1

Recurring Services

Item Number Item Description  Quantity Frequency

1-09-108 Aunt Flow Full Service Program, Model E (no service July and 
August)

26.00 28 Days

Total Annual Price $18,202.08

Signing below acknowledges I have read and agree to the Terms and Conditions of this agreement on the following page(s).

New Britain High School (“Customer”) Citron Hygiene GP Inc. (“Citron Hygiene LP”)

Name \n1\ Name \n2\

Signature \s1\ Signature \s2\

Date \d1\ Date \d2\

73



CUSTOMER AGREEMENT

2

Terms & Conditions

1. This agreement (“Agreement”) sets out the terms on which Citron will provide Customer, on an exclusive basis, with recurring or ad hoc hygiene 
services and sale of products as initially detailed in the table above. Additional recurring services may be added to this Agreement by way of a 
Customer Order form with its own term and automatically becomes part of and subject to the terms hereof. Citron’s washroom hygiene services 
include i) the rental and maintenance of the equipment and ii) servicing of the equipment including any materials required (e.g., consumable refills or 
batteries) required at the frequencies in days set out above. 

2. This Agreement shall start on the date the Agreement is signed by the Customer or the date specified by the Customer (the “Start Date”) and 
unless either party terminates the Agreement in accordance with its terms, it shall run for the initial term as outlined above (the “Term”) and will 
automatically renew for additional terms of twelve (12) months (the "Renewal Term").  Customer of Citron may terminate this Agreement effective on 
the last day of the Term or Renewal Term by providing by email by notice to customersuccess-us@citronhygiene.com, at least ninety (90) days prior 
to the expiry of the Term or Renewal Term.

3. This Agreement can be terminated prior to the end of its Term or Renewal Term based on the following:

a) Service Related: If Customer is not satisfied with the services provided by Citron, Customer can notify Citron by email to 
customersuccess-us@citronhygiene.com and if Citron fails to resolve any material issue within (30) days to the Customer's satisfaction, 
acting reasonably, the Customer can terminate this Agreement on giving thirty (30) days notice without penalty.

b) Contract Related: Either party may terminate this Agreement on written notice to the other party in the event of a) material breach of 
any term of this Agreement including, not cured within thirty (30) days of receiving written notice of such breach, by the terminating party, 
b) default by Customer in the performance of any of its obligations herein, including non-payment, c) appointment of a receiver to property 
of either party, or d) liquidation of either party's business for any reason. Service Related: If Customer is not satisfied with the services 
provided by Citron, Customer can notify Citron by email to customersuccess-us@citronhygiene.com and If Citron fails to resolve any 
material issue within (30) days to the Customer’s satisfaction, acting reasonably, the Customer can terminate this Agreement on giving 
thirty (30) days’ notice, without penalty.

4. If Customer terminates this Agreement or any individual service prior to the expiration of the Term or Renewal Term, other than for service issues 
covered by Clause 3 a), Customer shall pay Citron i) any outstanding invoices, plus ii) a cancellation fee equal to (a) the number of months remaining 
in the Term for each or the particular service cancelled multiplied by (b) 50% of the monthly amount for each recurring service, plus iii) equipment 
deinstallation fees, if applicable.

5. All equipment, except for equipment purchased by the Customer, is the sole property of Citron for use with the services and products purchased 
from Citron. Customer will be responsible for loss, theft, or damage above and beyond normal wear & tear or operating issues by not following the 
recommended operation instructions. Customer shall keep the equipment free from all liens, claims, and security interests. Customer acknowledges 
that a portion of the monthly charges are for i) the rental and use of the equipment and ii) the recurring services provided.

6. Customer permits Citron to access its premises to perform the services during regular business hours or at an agreed time of day. Customer 
agrees to provide 24-hour notice to cancel a scheduled service. If Citron attempts service and is not able to complete service during the agreed time 
of day, Citron reserves the right to charge for the rescheduled service to ensure continuity of service and operation of the equipment. Conversely, If 
Citron personnel are unable to complete assigned tasks due to late or missed appointments, Citron will make best efforts to reschedule the 
appointment to a mutually agreed upon date.

7. Customer will pay the amounts set forth above for the various services and products.
a) Services: Citron reserves the right, on each anniversary date from the start date of the services outlined above, to adjust prices on the 

various services and will provide notice of any change to service price, which notice may be in the form of an invoice.

b) Products: Citron reserves the right to adjust the prices based on changes to the pricing and terms with our suppliers.

74



CUSTOMER AGREEMENT

3

Citron reserves the right to impose a fuel, environmental, recycling and/or other charge, to partially cover operational cost increases from higher 
fuel, regulatory, or recycling costs incurred.

8. Customer agrees to pay all amounts due within thirty (30) days of the date of the invoice. Any payments not received by Citron on the due date 
will be subject to an interest charge on the unpaid balance of 1.0% per month, or the maximum allowable rate. Citron may suspend services until all 
overdue monies and charges due to Citron have been paid in full. The amount of all applicable taxes shall be added to the price and paid by Customer 
unless Customer has provided Citron with exemption certificates acceptable to the taxing authorities. Early termination of this Agreement will not 
relieve the Customer of any outstanding amounts due to Citron.

9. Citron, upon notice, shall be free to sub-contract, assign or otherwise transfer its rights and obligations under this Agreement to another party 
without the Customer’s consent. Customer may not sub-contract, assign or otherwise transfer its rights and obligations under this Agreement to 
another party without Citron’s consent.

10. Citron is making no representation or warranty, and there is no condition, in each case, express or implied, in respect of the services or products. 
The amounts payable to Citron for the services are established on the basis that it assumes no liability in connection with any claims in respect 
thereto. As such, and notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, in no event shall Citron have any liability at any time to the customer for 
any damages arising out of the performance of the services or products.

11. In no event shall Citron be liable to Customer or to any other person or entity with respect to any subject matter of this Agreement, under any 
equity, common law, tort, contract, estoppel, negligence, strict liability or other theory for any incidental, special, punitive, consequential or indirect 
damages or damages resulting from loss of sale, business, profits, data, opportunity or goodwill, even if the remedies provided for in this Agreement 
fail of their essential purpose.

12. Citron will not be held responsible for events outside of its control. If and to the extent that Citron’s performance of any of its obligations pursuant 
to this Agreement is prevented, hindered or delayed by fire, flood, earthquake, elements of nature or acts of God, acts of war, terrorism, riots, civil 
disorders, rebellions, revolutions, strikes, labor disputes, epidemic, pandemic, sanctions, embargo, any law or action by a government or public 
authority, legal process or any other similar cause beyond Citron’s reasonable control (each, a “Force Majeure Event”), then Citron shall be excused 
for such non-performance, hindrance or delay, as applicable, of those obligations affected by the Force Majeure Event for as long as such Force 
Majeure Event continues; Citron will use commercially reasonable efforts to recommence service whenever and to whatever extent possible.

13. This Agreement, including any subsequent Customer Order Form, constitute the entire understanding and agreement between the Citron and 
Customer, and supersedes all prior agreements or arrangements, oral or written, between Citron and Customer. If any provision is found to be invalid, 
or otherwise unenforceable, the other provisions will not be affected and will remain in full force and effect.

14. This Agreement and any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Agreement shall be deemed to have been made in and shall be construed 
in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware, and any action or proceedings related or arising to this agreement shall be brought only in the 
courts of such jurisdiction. Each party irrevocably consents and submits to such jurisdiction and venue.

15. The person signing the agreement on behalf of the Customer, certifies, represents, and warrants that the agreement has been read and is duly 
authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Customer and grants permission to Citron to perform services, maintenance and repairs on 
equipment that is located at the premises specified in this Agreement.

16. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which is deemed an original, but all of which together are deemed to be one and the 
same Agreement.

17. Any notice under or in connection with the Agreement shall be in writing and be delivered by e-mail or by certified or registered mail, return 
receipt requested, to the Customers nominated address as set out at the beginning of this Agreement, or if to Citron, by e-mail to customersuccess-
us@citronhygiene.com.

75



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Rebecca Gonzalez () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on June 5, 2023.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Tony Gasper Staff Presenter: Rebecca Gonzalez

Type of Memorandum

Bid Award

Background and Purpose/Rationale

Custodial Supply Bid Award:
March 21, 2023 - posted bid
April 21, 2023 - bid opening
April 24, 2023 - bid review and tabulation work

The most responsive and responsible bid was from Imperial Bag & Paper Co. LLC. Bid reflects competitive
pricing for all products requested and the cleaning program would be easily standardized across the
district. Additionally, their machine pricing is optimal with a wide variety of machines to choose from.
This makes them a great candidate for the bid because the entire district needs an overhaul in custodial
machinery over the next 5 years and with the great pricing offered, the district will be able to repair and
advance itself while staying within budget.

Financial Information

The total is $350,000 and the funding source is Facilities Custodial Supplies 101093126000 - 56101.

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee on May 30, 2023

Custodial Supplies Bid 2023 - requested information tab - Rebecca Gonzalez.png, Custodial Bid Amended PUBLIC - Rebecca Gonzalez

76

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1N7NKGMb0vdseTL8DAPv0Xn_dpAqPoiz0/view?usp=drivesdk
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1RqDSarN_bng93o1KIUwrwIXNoWYkRXOvW-WXdhFqp0U/edit?usp=drivesdk


NEW BRITAIN BOARD OF EDUCATION
272 MAIN STREET

NEW BRITAIN, CT 06050-1960

CSDNB Custodial Supply Bid  
In accordance with the specifications, the undersigned agrees to provide the items described on the Bid Form,
complete and in place at a location designated by the Consolidated School District. The Consolidated Schools
District reserves the right to reject all bids and/or make more than one award on the basis of this bid. Awards will be
made to the most responsible bidder. The Consolidated School District of New Britain reserves the right to award a
bid based on the best interests of the school district and is not required to select the lowest bidder.  All quantities are
estimated. Bids must be firm for a period of 90 days following the bid opening.

The Consolidated School District of New Britain (CSDNB) is seeking competitive bids from qualified
firms to provide Custodial Supplies for all of its buildings.

Specifications and the form of proposal on which bids must be submitted may be obtained at the Facilities
office at 250 John Downey Drive, New Britain CT 06051 between the hours of 7:00AM - 3:00PM. A
PDF version can be obtained by emailing a request to aucoin@CSDNB.org . It is the responsibility of the
vendor/firm to check for any issued addenda prior to any submission of the bid for this RFP. Failure to
address any addenda relating to the bid may disqualify submitted bids or proposals for this RFP.

Sealed bids ( 1 original, 2 copies) should be submitted and received at the Facilities office at 250 John
Downey Drive, New Britain CT 06051, on or before Friday April 21, 2023. At this time they will be
opened and reviewed for award.

The CSDNB reserves the right to accept or reject any or all options, bids, or proposals. To waive any
technicality in a bid or part thereof submitted, and to accept the bid or proposal which may not be the
lowest bid, deemed to be in the best interest of the CSDNB. The CSDNB reserves the right to award parts
of this bid to multiple vendors if it is in the best interest of the CSDNB.

Expected Schedule for Bid Process:
Bid Documents Available - March 21, 2023
Questions due by - March 31, 2023
Bid Submissions Due - April 21, 2023
Finance/ Facilities Committee Review - April 24, 2023
Expected BOE approval - May 8, 2023

77



Bid Specifications for Custodial Supplies for the CSDNB

Scope of Work:
This bid/proposal covers the requirements of the CSDNB and all its locations within New Britain for
custodial supplies. Bidders will include all labor, materials, equipment, supplies, and services to fulfill the
requirements of these bid specifications.

Term of Contract:
The contract period shall be three (3) years from the date of award (July 1, 2023), with the option to
extend the contract for two (2) additional years. Any contract extension will be based on the
recommendations of the Administration and shall be contingent upon the approval of the BOE.

Laws:
The vendor/firm will comply with all applicable laws and regulations for the Federal, State, and Local
governments as part of the agreement with the CSDNB for all services provided.

General Instructions:
All work and services provided by the vendor/firm will be performed in a professional manner, using
quality equipment and material for any and all services provided as part of the agreement with the
CSDNB.

Buildings to be included in the Bid
CSDNB Board of Education Building
New Britain High School
Pulaski Middle School
Slade Middle School
Diloreto Middle School/Elementary School
Gaffney Elementary School
Jefferson Elementary School
Holmes Elementary School
Smalley Elementary School
Smith Elementary School
Vance Elementary School
Lincoln Elementary School
Northend Elementary School
Chamberlain Elementary School
Pope John Paul Elementary School
Brookside Alternative Behavior Center
Roosevelt Early Learning Center
Transition Center
Pulaski Portable
Facilities office

78



Terms of Bid/RFP:
It is the intent of the CSDNB to award this bid/RFP, in its entirety, to one bidder. Bidders are required to
provide pricing for all items in all three divisions of this bid. Price per usage is required for bulk
chemicals on the bid sheet.

Division 1

Consumable Supplies :
The goal of CSDNB is the continued development of a standards-based cleaning maintenance program to
promote the health and well-being of the school community. The CSDNB intends to achieve this goal
through the use of high quality, safe, effective, environmentally preferable products. Products shall be
Green Seal or EcoLogo labeled and meet all the State of Connecticut requirements for schools. CSDNB
would like to implement standard procedures for the use of all cleaning products along with training and
quality assurance programming and planning. Firms should show how they are able to provide expertise
in how to use their products, training in standard procedures along with the consultation and improved
management of custodial chemicals and supply inventory and logistics.

Products:
● Paper towels and dispensers – Roll type paper with manual operation. No electronics
● Toilet paper and Dispensers-
● Tissues
● Hand Sanitizer
● Soap
● Custodial chemicals shall include but are not limited to; disinfectant, degreaser, glass cleaner,

neutral cleaner, Vandell remover
● Chemical dispensers with associated chemicals
● Trash can liners
● Disposable gloves and safety gear

79



Division 2

Custodial Equipment:
The goal of CSDNB is the continued development of a standards-based cleaning maintenance program to
promote the health and well-being of the school community. The CSDNB intends to achieve this goal
through the use of high quality, safe, effective, Equipment. Equipment shall be OSHA approved and meet
all safety standards for Connecticut. CSDNB wants to implement standard procedures for using all
non-chemical biased equipment along with training and quality assurance programming and planning.
Firms shall provide expertise in how to use their equipment, training in standard procedures, and
consultation and improved management of custodial equipment and logistics.

Equipment:
● Custodial carts and caddies
● Towels and rags
● Mops and Handles
● Mop buckets
● Trash barrels for custodians and classrooms
● Dustpans and brooms
● Entrance mats and area rugs
● Dusters
● Scrapers

80



Division 3

Custodial machines and floor care:
The goal of CSDNB is the continued development of a standards-based cleaning maintenance program to
promote the health and well-being of the school community. The CSDNB intends to achieve this goal
through high quality, safe, effective machines and Eco-Friendly floor care. Machines shall be OSHA
approved and meet all safety standards for Connecticut. CSDNB wants to implement standard procedures
for all machines, training and quality assurance programming and planning. Firms shall provide expertise
in how to use their machines, training in standard procedures, and consultation and improved
management of custodial machinery and logistics. Alternative machines shall be provided to advance
cleaning techniques. Floor care products shall be Green Seal or EcoLogo labeled and meet all the State of
Connecticut requirements for schools. CSDNB would like to institute a scrub and recoat program and
treat all floor types in their intended fashion ex: terrazzo, rubber, VCT, etc.

Machines and Floor Care:
● Floor finish
● Floor finish remover
● Carpet cleaning machines
● Swing machines
● Auto-scrubbers
● Pressure washers
● Salt Spreaders
● Ice treatment
● All in one bathroom cleaning machines
● Vacuums
● Associated machine and floor care products if applicable
● Machine Repair where necessary.

81



Division 1, 2, 3 Requirements:

Training: The CSDNB believes that a trained department is a successful and motivated department.
Proper training creates a safe environment in effective use of the chemicals and supplies. It creates both
district and individual goals and responsibilities. Training capabilities for all products offered must be
available onsite with the option of offsite training. Yearly training renewal will be provided by the firm
selected. The Firm must describe what their training process will look like and what state mandated
training they offer. EX: OSHA, Bloodborne pathogens, Asbestos. Firms shall indicate which of the
following training programs and materials that they will be asked to provide along with costs, if any, and
if there are any additional training services that are available that are not listed below:

● Compliance Training (SDS, Right to Know, Bloodborne pathogen, GHS, other)
● Train the trainers program
● Classroom Cleaning
● Restroom Cleaning
● Carpet Care
● Hard Floor Care
● Wood Floor Care
● Glass Cleaning
● Shower Room/Locker Room Cleaning
● Job Cards
● Wall Charts
● Operating Manual
● Videos

Safety Data Sheet: Vendor/Firm awarded the contract must provide all locations and the Director of
Facilities copies of all Safety Data Sheets in compliance with OSHA’s Hazard Communication Standard.
All labels for secondary containers are to meet OSHA’s guidelines. As a service to the CSDNB to assist in
our compliance with OSHA requirements, the vendor will provide SDS sheets and labeling in both
English and Spanish.

Technical Service Support: Vendor/firm will provide ongoing technical service support regarding
products, procedures, and equipment as requested by the CSDNB.

Prior Performance: Vendor/firm will provide a minimum of three (3) references for like size facilities
with whom the vendor/firm has conducted business and performed similar services as outlined in this
RFP. Current providers are exempted from this requirement.

Dispensing Systems: Vendor/firm will provide Chemical Proportioning and Dispensing System that is
designed to minimize chemical waste and maximize proper chemical usage and safety. This dispensing
system will be provided at no charge to the CSDNB. Vendor/firm shall describe the system they propose
to use as part of this RFP and the CSDNB may request a sample demonstration prior to the award of any
contract. Vendor/Firm will provide per usage pricing for bulk chemicals on bid sheet.

Company Representatives: The qualifications of the representatives assigned to the CSDNB as well as
back up personnel must be outlined in the proposal. The CSDNB is looking for qualified additional
support beyond simply providing and delivering the requested supplies. Bid proposals should identify a 82



brief history of how long their company has been providing Custodial Supplies and what support, training
and value added qualifications their company would bring beyond providing and delivering the requested
supplies.

Secondary Labeling: The successful vendor/firm shall be able to provide sufficient secondary product
labels/bottles for each item sold. The labels must be resistant to deterioration from contact with chemicals
and/or water. All secondary labels shall be bilingual and shall comply with the requirements of the OSHA
Hazard Communication Standard.

Brand Name: All products submitted must be recognized as a national brand and conform to the State of
Connecticut requirements for schools. The brand name must appear on the proposal for each item. A
space left blank will not be considered for award.

Chemical Products: All products must be UL, EPA, and OSHA approved, and meet State of Connecticut
requirements for schools where applicable. Products shall be Green Seal Certified or EcoLogo where
appropriate or have independent lab tests that prove the chemicals meet Green Seal Standards. All testing
and documentation will be at the vendor/firm's expense. Vendor/firm shall furnish applicable test data and
descriptive literature for all products as needed.

Regulatory Compliance: Assistance with regulatory compliance shall be given proactively. Expert
Witness Consultation during litigation that has reasonable connectivity to floors or any cleaning processes
or Custodial supplies shall be available at the request of the CSDNB. Vendors/firms may state what
services they may be able to provide in this area.

Supply Capabilities: Vendor/firm will provide information related to the average inventory dollars in
stock, shipping locations, number and type of delivery vehicles, and standard means of delivery.
Vendor/firm will indicate what delivery methods their company is able to provide in addition to same or
next day deliveries for special or emergency needs. Vendors/firms will be required to maintain adequate
stock of items within this RFP to avoid delays or back orders.

Chemical Manufacturer Access: Vendor/firm shall insure access through the internet to the school
district’s chosen manufacturer of custodial supplies.

Ordering Options: Understanding that orders may need to be placed in a variety of manners,
vendors/firms shall indicate which of the following ordering options are available through their company.
The CSDNB uses a purchase order system with workflow approvals prior to ordering taking place so we
will need to place orders in the following manners, telephone, email, or internet ordering.

Other Services: The ongoing process of improving overall housekeeping operations, will include, but not
be limited to evaluations, consultations, and recommendations regarding new equipment intended to
optimize current labor force efforts and that they can service. Vendors/firms shall describe what options
are available for equipment service and repair, along with if there are any limitations on makes, brands, or
types of equipment that can be serviced and where their service facilities are located.

Supply Ordering: Supply ordering will be done on an as needed basis and will be delivered to any of the
locations listed in the bid, as agreed upon with the vendor at time of order. If there is a larger percentage
discount for larger orders at one time please list it in your RFP response. 83



Unit/ Bulk Pricing: Unit pricing is requested for the items listed in each Division. The items listed
represent approximately 85% of the annual purchases made for each division. The remaining items
purchased are a variety of non-routine items that are ordered on an as needed basis. When applicable,
vendors should list discounted bulk pricing.

General Conditions

A. Pre - Bid Inspections
Bidders are encouraged to visit all sites to satisfy themselves as to the condition and requirements for each
school location and district office. Visitation can be set up through Chris Aucoin- Manager of Custodial
Operations by either email aucoin@csdnb.org or phone (860) 505-9723.

B. Payments
Payments will be made after services are performed and completed. Vendors/Firms shall send itemized
invoices, no later than one month after services are rendered. In no instance shall the CSDNB be held
liable for invoices submitted more than sixty days following the close of the fiscal year on June 30 of each
contract year. The invoices should be sent to the attention of the CSDNB Facilities Office located at 250
John Downey Dr, NB CT 06051 or emailed to: FaciltiesAP@csdnb.org

C. Basis of Award
An award will be made to the most responsible and qualified bidder. CSDNB reserves the right to award
all or portions of the contract agreement to one or multiple bidders if it is deemed in the best interest of
the CSDNB. The Consolidated Schools District reserves the right to reject all bids and/or make more
than one award on the basis of this bid. Awards will be made to the most responsible bidder. The
Consolidated School District of New Britain reserves the right to award a bid based on the best interests
of the school district and is not required to select the lowest bidder.

D. Laws
The vendors/firms shall comply with all applicable guidelines, regulations, and laws set forth by the
Federal, State, and Local governments.

E. Damage to CSDNB and/or Personal Property
The vendors/firms shall be responsible for the repair or replacement of damage caused by the use, misuse,
or negligence of the vendor/firm or their employees during the actions of services provided. The
vendor/firm will be required to carry the required level of insurance needed to provide services to the
CSDNB for the entire duration of the contracted agreement. The vendor/firm is responsible for reporting
any damage to the Manager of Custodial Operations within 24 hours of the occurrence.

F. Assessment of Penalties
In the event that the vendor/firm is not providing satisfactory service, had been given a chance to improve
in which the CSDNB had to have remedied by CSDNB staff or another vendor, The CSDNB will assess
the awarded vendor/firm a penalty for the full amount expended to correct the deficiencies. In the event
that the vendors/firms performance and/or equipment is not in proper working condition, the CSDNB
reserves the right to negotiate and assess penalties. Negotiation of penalties will be discussed by all
parties and final determination will be made by the CSDNB and the Board of Education legal counsel.

84



G. Disputes
In the event that there is a disagreement between the CSDNB and the awarded vendors/firms regarding
interpretations of contractual requirements, the vendor/firm is to proceed with the work in question under
protest until the disagreements are resolved by the CSDNB and the Board of Education legal counsel. The
decision shall be binding on all parties entered into the agreement.

H. Cancellation Clause
The CSDNB reserves the right to stop work and/or terminate the contract agreement for non-compliance
with the contract as long as the awarded vendor/firm has been given the opportunity to rectify any
non-compliance items within 30 days unless it involves the safety of staff, students, and visitors.

I. Bid Pricing
The CSDNB will award and enter a contractual agreement with the vendors/firms who are the most
responsible bidder that is deemed in the best interest of the CSDNB. Prices set on the original contract
execution date shall remain effective according to the schedule listed below:

Chemicals: Prices to be held for one-year firm, any increase for the succeeding periods will be
based on manufacturer increases and will be limited to no greater than (5%) Five percent on an
annual basis. Manufacturer letters will verify increases.

Supplies: Prices to be held for one-year firm, any increase for the succeeding periods will be
based on manufacturer increases and will be limited to no greater than (5%) Five percent on an
annual basis. Manufacturer letters will verify increases.

Equipment: Prices to be held for one-year firm, any increase for the succeeding periods will be
based on manufacturer increases and will be limited to no greater than (5%) Five percent on an
annual basis. Manufacturer letters will verify increases.

Products: Prices to be held for one-year firm, any increase for the succeeding periods will be
based on manufacturer increases and will be limited to no greater than (5%) Five percent on an
annual basis. Manufacturer letters will verify increases.

Trash Liners: Prices to be held for one-year firm, any increase for the succeeding periods will be
based on manufacturer increases and will be limited to no greater than (5%) Five percent on an
annual basis. Manufacturer letters will verify increases.

GENERAL BID SPECIFICATIONS - PART A

Bids shall be made on the bid forms furnished by the CSDNB, without alteration. Bids shall be submitted
in a sealed envelope, stating on the outside of the envelope the words “BID DOCUMENTS”, CSDNB bid
number, the title of the project or bid package for which the bid is being submitted, and the time and date
of the bid opening. All bidders shall provide three (3) copies of the bid, one original and two copies of
their bid, unless otherwise stated. Bids received after the deadline will be rejected. All spaces on the bid
form must be filled in with figures and words or the CSDNB in its sole discretion, may reject the bid as
non-responsive. NO faxed or emailed bids will be accepted.

85



Contractor qualifications - Right of refusal
CSDNB may make such investigations and conduct such scope reviews as deemed necessary by Finance,
in order for the BOE to determine the ability of the bidder to perform the work and the bidder shall
promptly, upon CSDNB’s request, furnish to CSDNB all such data for this purpose. CSDNB expressly
reserves the right to reject a bid if, in the BOE’s sole discretion, CSDNB determines, that a bid is
non-responsive, a bidder is not responsible, a bidder is not qualified to perform the work or the BOE
otherwise determines that the award of a contract to the bidder is not in the best interest of CSDNB.
Conditional bids will not be accepted.

Subcontractors
The bidder is specifically advised that any person, firm or other party to whom bidder intends to award a
subcontract or purchase order must be acceptable to CSDNB and that approval of the proposed
subcontract award cannot be sought from CSDNB unless and until the successful bidder submits all
information and evidence to CSDNB regarding the qualifications, experience and responsibility of the
proposed subcontractor. Although the bidder is not required to attach such information to its bid, the
bidder is hereby advised of this requirement so that it may plan accordingly and prevent delays.

Modification
Any bidder may modify his/her/its bid prior to the scheduled deadline for receipt of bids. The bidder
wishing to modify its bid shall submit such modified bid in accordance with the invitation to bid, shall
unequivocally indicate that its prior bid is superseded by the modified bid and shall submit its modified
bid in an envelope clearly marked “MODIFIED BID”.

Errors
The CSDNB, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to waive typographical or technical defects in the
bid, as well as its right to correct an award erroneously made as a result of a clerical error on the part of
the CSDNB.

Permits/Licenses
All applicable permits and licenses shall be obtained at the sole cost of bidders. No permits or permit fees
shall be waived by the CSDNB unless otherwise stated in the CSDNB’s Invitation to Bid or Instructions
to Bidders.

Obligations of Bidders
Each bidder shall, prior to submitting a bid, familiarize itself with the conditions under which the work
will be performed and conduct its own due diligence. Bidders shall be presumed to have read and to be
thoroughly familiar with the specifications and all bid documents. The failure of any bidder to request,
receive or examine any information or the failure of the bidder to familiarize itself with the conditions
relating to the performance and timing of the work shall in no way relieve any bidder from any obligation
in respect to the bid and shall not subject the CSDNB to any liability whatsoever. Furthermore, the bidder
is responsible for being aware of and conforming in all respects to all existing Federal, State of
Connecticut, and Town statutes, Ordinances, Regulations, laws and other legal applicable legal
requirements, regardless of whether any such applicable requirements are specifically identified in the bid
documents.

Withdrawal of Bids 86



Bids may be withdrawn prior to the time fixed for opening by submitting written notification of
withdrawal to the CSDNB prior to the bid opening deadline. Negligence or mistake on the part of the
bidder in preparing the bid confers no right of withdrawal or modification of the bid after such bid has
been opened.

“Or equal” Clause
Whenever a material, article or piece of equipment is identified in the bid document by reference to
manufacturers’ or vendors’ names, trade names, catalog numbers, etc., it is intended to establish a
standard, unless otherwise stated; any material, article, or equipment of other manufacturers and vendors
which will perform adequately the duties imposed by the general design may be considered equally
acceptable if, in the opinion of the CSDNB, the material, article, or equipment so proposed is of equal
substance and function. Any substitutions must be approved in writing by the Purchasing Agent or their
designee, who shall have sole discretion to determine the acceptability of the proposed substitute. The
product must meet or exceed the specifications of any products currently used by the CSDNB.

Non - Collusive Bid Statement
All bidders shall be required to sign the non-collusive statement attached.

Insurance
The vendor/firm will provide adequate proof of insurance to the CSDNB for the types of insurance and
limits indicated below, providing for all of its operations performed in compliance with this contract. The
successful bidder shall obtain and pay for the insurance coverage described below with the indicated
minimum limits. Bidders agree to furnish Certificates of Insurance to the CSDNB, certifying coverage to
be in effect for the term of this contract and that the CSDNB will be given sixty (60) days prior written
notice of cancellation or nonrenewal. These requirements, if checked, also apply to any subcontractor or
common carrier used by the Bidder.

I. Worker’s Compensation
Connecticut Statutory Limits
Applicable Federal Statutory Limits
Employer’s Liability $500,000 per Accident
$500,000 Disease per Employee
$500,000 Policy Limit

II. Commercial General Liability
Each Occurrence $1,000,000
General Aggregate $ 2,000,000
Products & Completed Operations Aggregate $ 2,000,000

III. Business Automobile Liability
(including owned, hired & non-owned vehicles)
Liability (Combined Single Limit) $1,000,000 each Accident

IV. Umbrella/Excess Liability (If Required)
Liability Limit – Each Occurrence Aggregate 10,000,000

87



V. Sexual Misconduct & Molestation (as a separate policy or an endorsement to the General Liability)
Each Occurrence $1,000,000
Aggregate $1,000,000

VI. Additional Insured
The CSDNB to be named as additional insured on all insurance policies, except Workers Compensation
and Professional Liability.

The vendor shall hold the CSDNB harmless for and against any and all injuries to persons and/or property
resulting out of performance of this contract and resulting from the bidder’s negligence.
ITEM VI MUST APPEAR ON THE FACE OF THE INSURANCE CERTIFICATE IN THE
SECTION ENTITLED “DESCRIPTION OF OPERATION

Indemnity/Hold Harmless
The vendors/firms insurance policies will be endorsed to provide for the CSDNB to be named as an
additional insured. The contractor will indemnify and save harmless CSDNB from all suits and actions
related to injuries to and/or damage to the property of others as a result of the activities of the contractor,
its servants and agencies acting for the contractor.

Certificate of Insurance
The vendor/firm, prior to the start of any work under this contract, shall provide the CSDNB Purchasing
Office with a certificate of insurance to conform to the following:

a. Form(s) acceptable to the CSDNB.
b. Insurance provided by insurance companies authorized to write coverage in the State of Connecticut.
c. Policy dates must cover the term of this contract.
d. Certificate will provide for at least 30 days’ notice to the CSDNB prior to cancellation.
e. All additional insured certificates are to list the CSDNB.

Under no circumstances shall the vendor/firm begin work until:

(1) the contract for same shall have been signed by all parties,
(2) the required bonds have been furnished by the vendor/firm and approved by the CSDNB,
(3) the required certificates of insurance have been filed with and approved by the CSDNB’s Purchasing
Office and
(4) The Contractor has been duly instructed in writing by the CSDNB to proceed with the work.
If the vendor/firm commences the work before the provisions referred to in this paragraph are fulfilled,
the CSDNB, in its sole option, may cancel or terminate the contract without penalty or liability chargeable
to the CSDNB.

Award to other than the apparent low bidder
The CSDNB reserves the right to award the work to a bidder other than the one which submitted the
lowest price if it deems such action to be in the best interest of the CSDNB.

Prices
Prices quoted for merchandise, supplies, or equipment shall be the net prices delivered into the CSDNB.
The CSDNB reserves the right to award separate items to separate bidders. The CSDNB is tax exempt 88



and will provide the certificate. Bidders may indicate exceptions to this. Bidders must include a Federal
ID number or Social Security number to be considered for bid approval.

Reserved Rights of CSDNB:
The CSDNB reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids or proposals; to waive any technicality in
a bid or proposal or part thereof submitted, and to accept the bid deemed to be in the best interest of the
CSDNB. Further, the CSDNB reserves the right to split bids and quotations among two or more bidders.
The CSDNB reserves the right to reject any bid submitted by a joint venture if the CSDNB determines
that any entity to the joint venture fails to satisfy the CSDNB’s requirements (i.e., bonding, insurance,
qualifications, responsibility).

Discrepancy in Bid Form
In the event of any discrepancy between the amount written in numerical figures and the amount stated in
written words, the amount written in words will be controlled. The CSDNB hereby notifies all bidders
that the BOE’s contract with the successful bidder shall contain the following provision of the above
statement.

Miscellaneous Requirements
Questions/Requests for Information: All Questions shall be submitted in writing only and e-mailed to
aucoin@csdnb.org at least seven (7) days prior to the bid opening date. Bidders shall not attempt or
engage in any ex parte or verbal communications with BOE personnel prior to the bid opening deadline.

All Applicable building codes to be met.
All construction shall meet all applicable Building and Fire Codes, as well as ADA requirements.
Deliveries: All deliveries are inside deliveries.
Provision of Bid Packets, Submission of Bids: Bid packets will be mailed upon request.
Bid packets will not be faxed.
Bid proposals must be mailed back or delivered to: 250 John Downey Drive, New Britain CT, 06051
Please include one original and three copies of your bid unless otherwise specified.
ALL ENVELOPES MUST BE MARKED PROPERLYWITH BID TITLE, AND BID DATE.

Ownership of Documents
All qualification statements, proposals and bids submitted by bidders are to be the sole property of the
CSDNB and subject to the provisions of the Connecticut General Statutes (re: Freedom of Information).

Ownership of Subsequent Products
Any work product, whether acceptable or unacceptable, developed under a contract awarded as a result of
this invitation to bid is to be the sole property of the CSDNB unless stated otherwise in the invitation to
bid or contract. Timing and Sequence – Timing and sequence of events resulting from this invitation to
bid will ultimately be determined by the CSDNB.

No Oral Agreements
The CSDNB, its agencies and employees, shall not be responsible for any alleged oral agreement or
arrangement made by a bidder with any agency or employee of the CSDNB.

89



Rejection for Default or Misrepresentation
The CSDNB reserves the right to reject the bid of any bidder that is in default of any prior contract or for
misrepresentation. Assigning, Transferring of Agreement – Bidders are prohibited from assigning,
transferring, conveying, subletting or otherwise disposing of this agreement, their rights, title or interest
therein or their power to execute such agreement by any other person, company, or corporation without
the prior consent and approval in writing by the CSDNB.

Cost of Preparing Qualification/Proposal Statements
The CSDNB shall not be responsible for any expenses incurred by any bidder in preparing and submitting
a bid.

No Conflict of Interest
Bidder certifies, by submitting a bid, that no owner, employee or family member (defined for purposes of
this invitation to bid as a spouse, parent, sibling or child) of an owner or employee of bidder is a current
or former employee of the CSDNB. Bidder further certifies that no owner or employee of bidder has any
interest, direct or indirect, which is incompatible with the proper discharge of the proposed duties in the
public interest or that would tend to impair Bidder’s independent judgment or action in the performance
of the proposed duties. Bidder certifies that it does not have any past, present or currently planned
interests which are an actual or potential organizational conflict of interest with respect to performing the
work for the CSDNB under this invitation to bid. Bidder hereby covenants and agrees that no employee,
elected official or appointed official of the CSDNB has any interest in this agreement or will directly or
indirectly benefit therefrom.

Compliance with the CSDNB Regulations
Bidder shall cause all persons performing work pursuant to the contract between bidder and the CSDNB
to comply with all CSDNB requirements, including instructions pertaining to conduct and to building
access and related requirements issued by the CSDNB, respectively. All personnel shall wear readily
visible identification in a form that is satisfactory to the CSDNB. The CSDNB may promulgate and
modify from time-to-time rules and regulations relating to conduct as the BOE, in its sole discretion, may
determine, and the contractor shall cause all persons performing work to comply with any such
requirements.

Confidential Information
Bidder shall cause all persons under bidder’s control who are providing services or materials under or
through bidder’s contract with the CSDNB to preserve and protect all information of the CSDNB to
which they have access during the performance of work as confidential. Bidder expressly acknowledges
that if the facilities that are subject of the project are public libraries, the security and safety of the
occupants, users, and general public are of paramount and bidder shall observe and enforce appropriate
security protocol to ensure the safety of users and occupants.

90



Division 1 Bid Sheet

Item Unit Price
Price per
case

Bulk Price if
applicable

Price per Usage
(Chemicals) Notes

Recycled Hardwound Paper towel. 800'

Dispensers

Single Roll Bath Tissue 2 Ply white

Facial Tissue - Case with individual boxes

Hand Sanitizer Refills - Please see Purell
addendum

Hand Sanitizer Wall Mount Dispensers -Please
see Purell addendum

Hand Soap - Please see Purell addendum

Hand Soap Wall Mount Dispensers- Please see
Purell addendum

Disinfectant wipes - Please see Purell addendum

Custodial Chemical Dispenser system with wall
cartridges,. No Barrels or pails

Degreaser

Disinfectant

Glass Cleaner

Neutral Cleaner

Vandal Remover - (non aerosol)

Enzyme eliminator

Trash Can Liners - 40 x 46- 2 mil - Black

Trash Can LIners - 33 x 40- 2 mil - Clear

Trash Can Liners - 24 x 33 Available Mil options
- Clear

Nitrile Gloves - Non Sterile- Powder and Latex
free- Small

Nitrile Gloves - Non Sterile- Powder and Latex
free- Medium

Nitrile Gloves - Non Sterile- Powder and Latex
free- Large

Disposable Coveralls - Elastic Wrist and Ankles -
Small

Disposable Coveralls - Elastic Wrist and Ankles -
Medium

Disposable Coveralls - Elastic Wrist and Ankles -
Large

Batteries AA (Case) Quantity per case

Batteries AAA (Case) Quantity per case 91



Division 1 Bid Sheet Continued

Item Unit Price
Price per
case

Bulk Price if
applicable

Price per Usage
(Chemicals) Notes

Batteries C (Case) Quantity per case

Batteries D (Case) Quantity per case

Batteries 9 volt (Case) Quantity per case

Urinal Deodorizer Screens - Non- dissolving

Magic Erasers

92



Division 2 Bid Sheet

Item Unit Price
Price per
case

Bulk Price if
applicable Notes

Commercial Style Caddy Bag

Janitorial Cleaning Cart wheeled with bag and mop
bucket platform

Microfiber Towels - 16" x 16" Red Quantity per case

Microfiber Towels - 16" x 16" Blue Quantity per
case

Microfiber Towels - 16" x 16" Yellow Quantity per
case

Microfiber Towels - 16" x 16" Green Quantity per
case

Wet Mop Handle - Gripper Style - Fiber Glass

Dry Mop Handle - Clip on Style- Wooden

Wet Mop Head- Microfiber- 28" Looped Blue

Wet Mop Head Microfiber- 28" Looped Red

Wet Mop- Finish Head - 28" Medium

Dry Mop 24" Micro Fiber

Dry Mop 60" Micro Fiber

35 qrt Mop Bucket with Wringer with separate
reservoirs

Trash Barrel - Classroom - Slim 23 Gallon (20"L x
11"W x 30"H)

Trash Barrel - Custodial Use - 55 Gallon

Trash Barrel Dolly Single (55 Gallon)

Trash Barrel Dolly Tandem (55 Gallon)

Lobby Broom and Dust Pan Combo

Entryway carpet with rubber backing 4' x 6' Water
Hog

Entryway carpet with rubber backing 4' x 10' Water
Hog

Entryway carpet with rubber backing 4' x 20' Water
Hog

93



Division 2 Bid Sheet Continued

Item Unit Price
Price per
case

Bulk Price if
applicable Notes

Extension Pole (for duster and squeegee)

Lambswool Duster attachment

Microfiber Duster attachment

Floor Squeegee 24"

Floor Squeegee 36"

Floor Scraper 4"

Floor Scraper Blades 4"

Short Handed Scrub Brushes

Basic Utility Tool Kit (Screw Drivers, Wrenches,
Hammer)

Toilet bowl Brush - Cotton

3 M Clear packing tape - 2" wide rolls

32 Oz Spray Bottle with Spray top

Utility Knife

Industrial Toilet Plunger

Fiber Glass Ladder- 6ft

Fiber Glass Ladder- 8ft

Fiber Glass Ladder- 10ft

94



Division 3 Bid Sheet

Item Unit Price
Price per
case Bulk Price if applicable Notes

Green Seal Floor Wax (5 gallon)

Floor Finish Remover

Wax/floor Stripper

Industrial Carpet Extractor (100 PSI w/3 stage
vac) corded

Floor Scrubber (Swing Machine) 20"

Auto Floor Scrubber Ride on 28"AGM
Battery

Auto Floor Scrubber walk behind 20"AGM
Battery, Drive Motor

Auto Scrubber (Willmop style)AGM Battery

Scrubbing Brush 20"

Polishing Brush 20"

Buffing Pad 20"

Diamond Pad cleaning 20"

Diamond Pad buffing 20"

Scrubbing Brush 28"

Polishing Brush 28"

Diamond Pad cleaning 28"

Pressure Washer Electric - 2000 PSI

Industrial Salt Spreader 65lb capacity

Ice Melt - 50lb bags Eco Friendly

All purpose touch free cleaning machine
(bathrooms)

Industrial upright vacuum with bag

Vacuum bags with hepa filter

Industrial Backpack Vacuum 6QT & 10QT

Industrial Wet Vacuum with mounted front
squeegee

Portable Floor Blower

Machine Repair Labor Rate

95



Consolidated School District of New Britain
Bid Price Sheet

Proposal of____________________________________________ (hereinafter called "Bidder")*

To the Consolidated School District of New Britain, Connecticut (hereinafter called "CSDNB".)

The Bidder, in compliance with your invitation for bids for Custodial Supplies for the Consolidated School
District of New Britain(CSDNB) having examined the specifications with related documents, and being familiar
with all of the conditions surrounding the furnishing of the proposed equipment or services including the
availability of materials and labor, hereby proposes to furnish all labor, materials, supplies or services and to
provide the equipment or services in accordance with the bid specifications, as prepared by CSDNB, within the
time set forth in the bid specifications, and at the prices stated on the Bid Division Section Sheets. These prices
are to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the contract documents, of which this
proposal is a part.

The Bidder hereby agrees to commence work under this contract on or before a date to be fixed in the written
“Notice to Proceed” given by CSDNB to the Bidder and to fully complete all work related to the Contract
within the agreed upon work schedule of the Contract or the Notice to Proceed, whichever is later.

The Bidder agrees to provide the services or products and perform the work described in the specifications for
the CSDNB Bid on Custodial Supplies and acknowledges that pricing is listed correctly on the specific division
bid sheets and that they are attached to this document for submission. Bidders are asked to initial their bid
division documents.

Authorized Signature: _________________________________  Date: ___________________

Printed Name: _____________________________________ Phone Number: ______________

Company Name: ____________________________________

96



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Jeff Prokop () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on June 5, 2023.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Jeff Prokop Staff Presenter: Jeff Prokop

Type of Memorandum

Purchase Order

Background and Purpose/Rationale

This cart is purchased factory direct, and there are no other vendors. Previous cart purchases were over
double the cost of these carts.

This purchase is for 300 Pochar C30BH charging carts that are to be deployed throughout the school
district. The additional carts will provide charging capacity and safe-keeping in the classrooms.

Financial Information

The total is $153,000.00 and the funding source is MIS Local Budget - Equipment Replacement
101092125800-57345.

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee on May 31, 2023

C30B-H - Fully Assembled 30-Unit Charging Cart with Electronic Keypad — Pochar LLC - Jeffrey Prokop.pdf, Consolidated School District of New
Britain Quote Pochar - Jeffrey Prokop.pdf

97

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1YJ8emASwvH_03PNGlvaifJSrmREpU2m-/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Zb1T8qzuChAuWPOWckr8KZsa7kOWJHOZ/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Zb1T8qzuChAuWPOWckr8KZsa7kOWJHOZ/view?usp=drivesdk


strips are powered by a single cord that only takes up one outlet. Ground fault protec�on is built into the front and back of the cart for user safety!

CABLE MANAGEMENT: Removable power cord baskets o�er organiza�on in the back, and you can charge your devices using either the top cord hooks
in the front, or the zig-zag slots in the dividers. Our plas�c dividers prevent the screens from ge�ng scratched, and the extra-wide device slots will �t
tablets or laptops with protec�ve cases on.

USER FRIENDLY: This cart arrives to you fully assembled! Just a�ach the wheels and cord hooks and you are ready to go. Our built-in plas�c handlebar
provides ergonomic maneuverability and prevents sta�c shocks. In addi�on, this cart’s front door opens a full 270 degrees. Each organizer, rack, outlet,
and divider corresponds to one device for op�mized management.

EXTRA FEATURES: Our sophis�cated black color scheme adds more chic and class to your classroom or workspace. In addi�on, the 4 rounded corners
provide style and safety to the environment. This cart also includes a free laptop mat so you can use a laptop safely on the top of your cart, or anywhere
else! (Mat measures 15.6” L x 11.6” W)

98



99



POCHAR LLC Quote# CSDNB-001

2821 E Philadelphia St STE A Quote Date: 05/16/2023
Ontario, CA 91761 Valid Until: 05/23/2023
Tel: (909) 930-0998

QUOTE
Bill To Ship To
Jeff Prokop Jeff Prokop
Consolidated School District of New Britain Consolidated School District of New Britain

183 steele st 183 Steele St
New Britain Conneticut 06052 New Britain Conneticut 06052

Phone: 424-333-6340 Phone: 424-333-6340
Email: prokop@csdnb.org Email: prokop@csdnb.org

MODEL # DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE DISCOUNT PRICE QUANTITY TOTAL

C30B-H FULLY ASSEMBLED 30-UNIT CHARGING 
CART WITH ELECTRONIC KEYPAD (Black) $599.99 $510.00 300 $153,000.00

Notes SubTotal $153,000.00
1. We accept P.O. from public and private schools, hospitals, and government facilities. Payment term is net 
30 for all orders. Shipping $0.00

2. For non-P.O. orders, the payment must be received in full prior to shipment. Sales Tax 6.35% $9,715.50
3. We accept payment through credit card, bank transfer, and paper checks. Grand Total $162,715.50
4. The above quote number must be referenced in order to receive the special pricing for the products and 
quantities listed. If any quantities are changed, prices will be subject to renegotiation. All informaiton contained 
within this quote is valid for the next 30 days. MINIMUM 20% RESTOCKING FEE WITH ORIGINAL 
PACKAGING.
5. For bulk orders that need to be shipped with LTL carriers, we do not provide Inside Delivery. If liftgate 
service is needed upon delivery, a shipping cost of $100 will be added to the final invoice.

Bank Information for Direct Deposit
Company Name: POCHAR LLC
Wells Fargo Account # 8499173162
Wells Fargo Routing # 122000247

100



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Alejandro Ortiz () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on June 5, 2023.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Tyrone Richardson Staff Presenter: Tyrone Richardson

Type of Memorandum

Purchase Order

Background and Purpose/Rationale

Chromebook devices needed for their one to one devices and loaners. The need for online assessments,
classroom tasks, assignments, and enrichments for our students

Financial Information

The total is $35,000.00 and the funding source is Commissioner's Network 234705310001-57243.

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee on May 31, 2023

NJWR222 - Alejandro Ortiz.pdf

101

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1HXmwwtuWOrSut8tJAu0s7wZ1rbLp_ugd/view?usp=drivesdk


Hardware Software Services IT Solutions Brands Research Hub

Review and Complete Purchase

Thank you for choosing CDW. We have received your quote.

JEFF PROKOP,

Thank you for considering CDW•G for your technology needs. The details of your quote are below. If 

you are an eProcurement or single sign on customer, please log into your system to access 

the CDW site. You can search for your quote to retrieve and transfer back into your system for 

processing.

For all other customers, click below to convert your quote to an order.

Convert Quote to Order 

QUOTE # QUOTE DATE QUOTE REFERENCE CUSTOMER # GRAND TOTAL

NJWR222 5/15/2023 PULASKI 35K 2354906 $34,721.36

QUOTE DETAILS

ITEM QTY CDW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

Google Chrome Education Upgrade 106 5988499 $32.00 $3,392.00

Mfg. Part#: CROS-SW-DIS-EDU-NEW

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: PEPPM 2022 Catalog Agreement (PEPPM2022)

CDW Chrome OS White Glove Service with Laser Etching-Tier 

1 Static Small

106 3223462 $24.00 $2,544.00

Mfg. Part#: CUSTOMBNDWGS1

Contract: PEPPM 2022 Catalog Agreement (PEPPM2022)

CDW CDWG Asset Tag applied WITH another CDW 

Configuration Center service

106 338520 $0.00 $0.00

Mfg. Part#: ASSETTAGW/INSTALL

UNSPSC: 81111511

Contract: MARKET

Dell Chromebook 3110 - 11.6" - Celeron N4500 - 4 GB RAM - 

32 GB eMMC

106 6847262 $271.56 $28,785.36

Mfg. Part#: 939GH

Contract: PEPPM 2022 Catalog Agreement (PEPPM2022)

SUBTOTAL

$34,721.36

SHIPPING

$0.00

SALES TAX

$0.00

GRAND TOTAL

$34,721.36 

PURCHASER BILLING INFO

DELIVER TO

102

https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions/site-map.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/software.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/services/amplified-services.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/solutions.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/brand.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/research-hub.html
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/quotes/QuoteDetails.aspx?qn=NJWR222
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=5988499
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=3223462
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=3223462
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=338520
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=338520
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6847262
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6847262


Page 2 of 3

Billing Address:

CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

272 MAIN ST

PO BOX 1960

NEW BRITAIN, CT 06051-2663

Phone: (860) 225-6351

Payment Terms: NET 30 Days-Govt/Ed

Shipping Address:

PULASKI MIDDLE SCHOOL

JEFF PROKOP

757 FARMINGTON AVE

NEW BRITAIN, CT 06053

Shipping Method: UPS Ground (2- 3 Day)

Please remit payments to:

CDW Government

75 Remittance Drive

Suite 1515

Chicago, IL 60675-1515

Sales Contact Info 

Vincent Mulvihill   |  (866) 773-7348 | vinny@cdwg.com

LEASE OPTIONS

FMV TOTAL FMV LEASE OPTION

BO TOTAL

BO LEASE OPTION

$34,721.36 $939.21/Month $34,721.36 $1,082.26/Month

Monthly payment based on 36 month lease. Other terms and options are available. Contact your Account Manager for details. Payment quoted

is subject to change.    

Why finance?   

• Lower Upfront Costs. Get the products you need without impacting cash flow. Preserve your working capital and existing credit line. 

• Flexible Payment Terms. 100% financing with no money down, payment deferrals and payment schedules that match your company's

business cycles. 

• Predictable, Low Monthly Payments. Pay over time. Lease payments are fixed and can be tailored to your budget levels or revenue streams. 

• Technology Refresh. Keep current technology with minimal financial impact or risk. Add-on or upgrade during the lease term and choose to

return or purchase the equipment at end of lease. 

• Bundle Costs. You can combine hardware, software, and services into a single transaction and pay for your software licenses over time! We

know your challenges and understand the need for flexibility.   

General Terms and Conditions:   

This quote is not legally binding and is for discussion purposes only. The rates are estimate only and are based on a collection of industry data

from numerous sources. All rates and financial quotes are subject to final review, approval, and documentation by our leasing partners.

Payments above exclude all applicable taxes. Financing is subject to credit approval and review of final equipment and services configuration.

Fair Market Value leases are structured with the assumption that the equipment has a residual value at the end of the lease term.

Need Help?

My Account Support Call 800.800.4239

About Us | Privacy Policy | Terms and Conditions 

This order is subject to CDW's Terms and Conditions of Sales and Service Projects at

http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx

For more information, contact a CDW account manager

103

https://www.cdwg.com/accountcenter/logon
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/help-center.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/about/overview.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions/privacy-notice.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions.html
http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx


Page 3 of 3

© 2023 CDW•G LLC, 200 N. Milwaukee Avenue, Vernon Hills, IL 60061 | 800.808.4239

104



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Jeff Prokop () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on June 5, 2023.
Senior Leadership Sponsor: Jeff Prokop Staff Presenter: Jeff Prokop and Ann Alfano

Type of Memorandum

BID Award and Contract Approval

Background and Purpose/Rationale

The Consolidated School District of New Britain issued an RFP for Copier Services and Copier (MFD) Fleet Leasing in
March 2023. An internal Copier RFP committee assembled to review proposals. After presentations from the three
strongest contenders, the committee scored each prospective vendor with the scoring matrix as outlined in the
RFP.

https://www.csdnb.org/bids-contracted-services.php

The copier RFP Committee’s recommendation is to award Ricoh the contract.

At this time a final BAFO (Best and final Offer) regarding the specific devices and locations is still underway, we
would like to proceed in moving forward with board approval to quickly execute the contracts and purchasing in
early July to ensure the fastest turn around for a much needed device fleet refresh during the summer.
The contract terms for these services would be set for five years. In the contract, the school district leases all Multi
Function Devices (Copiers which also work as scanners, some with fax capabilities.) The copier fleet can be as large
as the print shop at the Gates Building or a small office copier. The fleet size is expected to be up to 116 devices in
total and will include RFID badge readers for staff access.

The fleet would mostly come from a Ricoh Greenline Option, which school districts may participate in. Devices are
certified after a full dismantling and rebuild and come at a significant savings.

All licensing with PaperCut is continued and transferred with this agreement, along with support for the transition.

The lease costs are broken into monthly payments that also include the minimum copier count charges. Overage
charges are billed quarterly.

Financial Information

The total is Yearly Cost $212,019.36 - $245,000 plus quarterly overage charges and the funding source is MIS Local
Budget Copier and Print Services starting in FY 2023-24 101092125300-55500.

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee on May 31, 2023

2022-2023_RFP-Copier-Managed-Print-Services-CSDNB-2023 - Jeffrey Prokop.pdf, Copier RFP - Evaluations - Jeffrey Prokop.pdf

105

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1OQC4Zc5bNemG4r0YE5_Btmi392DzYXmE/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1RRjn7UBwqKzmAXK9LYgun0Ui1wtKfhwl/view?usp=drivesdk


 

  

Consolidated School District of New Britain 

 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 

 

 

 

 

 

Managed Print Services 

 

 
Proposal Release Date: Thursday, March 16, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Issued By: 

 

RFP- Managed Print Services 

Jeff Prokop 

prokop@csdnb.org.

106

mailto:prokop@csdnb.org


 

1  

INTRODUCTION 

 

This is an invitation to vendors to participate in a Request for Proposal (“RFP”) for Managed Print Services. 

Awards will be based on Proposer responses to this RFP. 

 

About Consolidated School District of New Britain: 
 

Introduction 

 

Consolidated School District of New Britain (CSDNB), CT, also known as New Britain Public 

Schools, is a school district headquartered in New Britain, Connecticut. The district serves approximately 

10,000 students. 

 

High School 

• New Britain High School 

• Satellite Careers Academy (SCA) 

Middle schools 

• Pulaski Middle School 

• Slade Middle School 

• House of Arts Letters and Sciences Academy (HALS Academy)  

Primary/ schools 

• Chamberlain Primary School 

• DiLoreto Magnet School (K-8) 

• Gaffney Elementary School (PK-5) 

• Holmes Elementary School 

• Jefferson Elementary School 

• Lincoln Elementary School 

• Northend Elementary School 

• Smalley Elementary School 

• Smith Elementary School 

• Vance Elementary School 

Shared Campus / Smaller Learning Centers 

• Roosevelt (formerly a middle school) is a shared campus between SCA, HALS and the Roosevelt 

Early Learning Center (Preschool). 

• Brookside is a small campus building hosting students grades 8-12. 

• New Britain Transitional Center is a small campus building hosting students grades K-12. 

 

This Request for Proposal seeks competitive proposals complying with the terms, conditions and 

requirements set forth below. 

 

CSDNB will accept proposals until 3:00 PM., 04/14/2023.  Proposals shall be submitted electronically. 

Any questions or concerns regarding this Request for Proposal shall be directed to Jeff Prokop 

electronically to e-mail address: prokop@csdnb.org. 
 

107

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/School_district
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/New_Britain%2C_Connecticut
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Connecticut
mailto:prokop@csdnb.org


 

2  

Proposal Evaluations 

 

Factors which will be used to evaluate Respondent’s proposals include the following selection criteria: 

 

Evaluation Criteria Weight 

Organizational Capability, Account Support & Staffing Plan 20 Points 
Demonstrated experience of the Respondent providing Managed Print Services to 

education for a minimum of five (5) years. 
 

  

A staffing plan that describes the number, function, relevant experience and 

competencies of employees and management team assigned for this proposal. 

Staffing plan demonstrates the overall quality of employees and management 

team, adequacy of staffing levels for the assignment given previous experience 

in similar projects at education institutions of similar or greater size 
than Consolidated School District of New Britain. 

 

Implementation, Deployment, and Transition-Out Plans 10 Points 
Preliminary project plan which provides a comprehensive management approach 

and description of processes to be applied when executing the services. This 

should include a timeline with key milestones for the projects as well as 

development of weekly reports. 

 

Comprehensive and effective proposal with regards to a Change Management Plan  

Preliminary project plan that provides a comprehensive management approach, 

timeline and description of processes to be used in conducting the work. 

 

Transition-out plan is comprehensive and addresses the needs of Consolidated 

School District of New Britain while taking a thoughtful and all-inclusive 
approach to consider the districts best interest. 

 

Technology Features and Functionalities of Proposed 

Hardware, Infrastructure, Software and Security Plan 

10 Points 

Features and functionalities of the Respondent‘s hardware, software, and 

infrastructure (where applicable). 
 

Features and functionalities of the Respondent‘s hardware, software and 

infrastructure (where applicable) are user-friendly. 

 

Overall quality of hardware, software and infrastructure (where applicable) which 

meets or exceeds Consolidated School District of New Britain’s expectations. 

 

Equipment qualifies as ENERGY STAR® compliant.  

Respondent’s plan considers Consolidated School District of New Britain’s 

security needs and adheres to the requirements outlined by the school district. 

Thoughtful consideration has been given to provide a superior level of service 

related to potential security issues, including prompt remediation of security 
issues. 

 

Pricing/Fee Structure 40 Points 
Pricing is fair, competitive, and consistent with rates offered to peer 

institutions/organizations utilizing similar services. 

 

Approach to fee structure is comprehensive, simple to understand, and easily applied 
within a practical environment. 

 

Overall value to Consolidated School District of New Britain of any financial 

incentives, including but not limited to rebates, tiered/volume discounts, various 

incentive programs. 

 

References & History of Success 10 Points 

108



 

3  

Three References from other education institutes which have contracted or utilized 

Respondent’s services, whose requirements are similar to those outlined 

herein. 

 

Examples of managed print services projects with successful outcomes at 

comparable education institutions. At a minimum those examples should be 

provided for each institution utilized as a reference. 

 

 
Projected cost savings/containment opportunities realized as a result of a 

successfully deployed managed print services program, including examples of 

savings opportunities (in dollars) realized by other clients as a result of 

instituting a managed print services program. Projected cost savings shall be 

based on actual data and be itemized, delineated, and presented in a fashion 

which is easily understood and can be effectively communicated. 

 

Demonstrated experience in successfully planning, implementing, and executing 
processes for rightsizing equipment with other public education institutes. 

 

Reporting/Analytical Capabilities 10 Points 
Demonstrated ability to provide robust reporting which meets or exceeds the 

Consolidated School District of New Britain’s requirements as outlined: 

including but not limited to: reports of print operations, i.e. volume by user, 
total number of pages and other printing analytics; invoice reports for job 

tickets; client detail reports; and accounting reports 

 

TOTAL POINTS AVAILABLE: 100 POINTS 
 

The award of a contract will be based upon a comprehensive review, analysis and negotiation of the 

proposal, which is most advantageous to the needs of Consolidated School District of New Britain. The 

contract award will be based on a points-earned matrix derived from a pricing and technical evaluation as 

outlined below. 

 

Consolidated School District of New Britain will exercise a Best and Final Offer (BAFO) approach to this 

procurement, for which additional details are included below. 

 

The award shall be made to the most responsive bidder offering the most advantageous proposal to 

Consolidated School District of New Britain, as determined by Consolidated School District of New 

Britain. All Bidders submitting proposals concur with this method of award and will not, under any 

circumstances or in any manner, dispute any award made using this method. 

 

All proposals will be evaluated by a committee, which will use the specific evaluation criteria listed. The 

importance given to each element is represented proportionately by the respective point assignments as 

noted above. 

 

The submittal and evaluation of proposals received in response to this RFP shall adhere to a two-phased 

approach as outlined below. 

 

Phase # 1: 

Phase one of this RFP will require prequalified bidders to provide a response to the RFP per the terms, 

conditions and specifications outlined in in this document. Two (2) bidders shall be selected as a result of 

the evaluation of phase one proposals. The two bidders who will be invited to proceed to phase two of the 

evaluation will be those whose proposals receive the highest score and/or ranking. 

109



 

4  

Phase # 2: 

Phase two of this procurement will consist of two bidder finalists, selected by Consolidated School District 

of New Britain as a result of the initial round of evaluation of the RFP responses, to participate in a best 

and final (BAFO) offer process through which both vendors will complete a full assessment of Consolidated 

School District of New Britain’s current printing infrastructure and practices to determine needs for future 

efficiency, recommend solutions for rightsizing, and provide updated financial proposals based upon a cost 

per copy model. Any expenses incurred during the process of completing a full assessment will be borne 

at the expense of the Respondent. Respondents selected as finalists will be required to sign a Nondisclosure 

agreement prior to proceeding to the second phase of this procurement. 

 

Estimated Timetable 

 

The following schedule will apply to this RFP: 

Release of RFP .......................................................... Thursday, March 16, 2023 

Closing Date for Written Inquiries .......................... Wednesday, March 29, 2023 

Answers to Written Inquiries Posted Online: .............. Friday, March 31, 2023 

Submission of RFP .................................................... Friday, April 14, 2023 

Est. Date of Identification of Finalists  

Presentations and Walkthrough .................................. April 20-24, 2023 

Anticipated Due Date of BAFO ............................... Monday, May 8, 2023 

Anticipated Award Date ........................................... Monday, May 15, 2023 

Contract Execution and Device Fleet Deployment.….Summer 2023 

Service Commencement TBA 

 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 

Point of Contact and Inquiries 

Jeff Prokop electronically to e-mail address: prokop@csdnb.org. 
 

All questions must be submitted in writing via email. 

Consolidated School District of New Britain will provide a written response to all written requests for 

clarification and will post the responses online in a Q&A format. All questions must be received by 

Wednesday, March 29, 2023.  

 

Submission Format 

 

The following process so described is intended to ensure that all Proposers have equal access to 

information relative to this RFP. No information communicated verbally shall be effective unless 

confirmed by written communication. 

 

In all cases, no verbal communication will override written communications and only written 

communications are binding. 

 

This Request for Proposal seeks competitive proposals complying with the terms, conditions and 

requirements set forth below. 

 

CSDNB will accept proposals until 3:00 PM., 04/14/2023. 

Proposals shall be submitted electronically. 

110

mailto:prokop@csdnb.org


 

5  

***IMPORTANT NOTE*** 

Any RFP proposal received after the date and time stated will not be considered and will be returned 

to the Proposer unopened. 

 

Proposals should be presented in a format that can easily be incorporated into a contract between the 

proposer and Consolidated School District of New Britain. Proposals must be submitted electronically 

within same time frame as hard copies. 

 

Bidding Terms 

 

Proposals must demonstrate: an understanding of the scope of work, the ability to accomplish the tasks set 

forth; and must include information that will enable Consolidated School District of New Britain to 

determine the proposer's overall qualifications. 

 

Each Proposer must respond to, and be capable of, supplying all services outlined in the RFP specification. 

 

Addenda to the RFP: If it becomes necessary to revise any part of this RFP, notice of the revision will be 

given in the form of an addendum to all prospective proposers who are on record with the Purchasing 

Department as having received this RFP. All addenda shall become a part of this RFP. Receipt of addenda 

must be acknowledged by each proposer. The failure of a Bidder to acknowledge any addendum shall not 

relieve the Bidder of the responsibility for complying with the terms thereof. All addenda must be signed 

by an authorized representative of the Respondent and returned with the proposal on or before the proposal 

opening date. Failure to sign and return any and all addenda shall be grounds for rejection of the proposal 

response. 

 
 

RFP Status and Submission Information: 

 

a. RFP Acceptance/Rejection: Consolidated School District of New Britain reserves the right to cancel this 

solicitation, to reject any or all proposals received (or any part thereof without penalty), to waive 

informalities or irregularities and to award a contract not based solely on the lowest cost, but based on an 

offer which, in the sole opinion of Consolidated School District of New Britain, best fulfills or exceeds the 

requirements of this RFP and is most advantageous to Consolidated School District of New Britain. Non- 

acceptance of a proposal shall mean that another proposal was deemed more advantageous to Consolidated 

School District of New Britain or that all proposals were rejected. Firms whose proposals are not accepted 

shall be notified after a binding contractual agreement between Consolidated School District of New Britain 

and the selected bidder exists or after the Consolidated School District of New Britain has rejected all 

proposals. 

 

b. RFP Submittals: Any exceptions and/or alternates must be stated in the response to the RFP. All 

exceptions must be outlined on a separate document titled “Exceptions to Terms, Conditions, and 

Specifications”. Failure to provide required data to allow for evaluation of the RFP or failure to complete 

the accompanying documents may be grounds for rejecting the RFP. 

 

Consolidated School District of New Britain expressly reserves the right to negotiate prior to an award, any 

contract that may result from this RFP. Further, this bid creates no obligation on the part of Consolidated 

School District of New Britain to award a contract. 

111



 

6  

c. Effective Period of Proposals: The proposals submitted must remain in effect for a minimum period of 

one hundred eighty (180) days after the closing date to allow time for evaluation, approval, negotiation, and 

award of the contract. 

 

Proposal Preparation, Pre-Award Presentations and Negotiations: 

 

a. Proposal Preparation: Consolidated School District of New Britain will assume no cost for proposal 

preparation and submission. Answers to Proposer’s questions that impact scope, timetable, etc. will be 

communicated in writing contemporaneously to all parties as quickly as possible. If Consolidated School 

District of New Britain awards a contract to a Proposer, the Proposer’s responses to this RFP will become 

part of the executed contract. 

b. Pre-Award Presentations: As a part of the evaluation process, Consolidated School District of New 

Britain may require presentations from the highest ranked proposers. If a Proposer is requested to make a 

presentation, the Proposer will make the necessary arrangements and bear all costs associated with the 

presentation. Consolidated School District of New Britain tentatively expects presentations to occur in 

accordance with the timetable included in this RFP. Respondents are hereby notified of the likelihood of 

the requirement for presentations during this time period and, by submitting a proposal in response to this 

RFP, agree to make themselves available for the forthcoming presentations. 

 

c. Award Negotiations: Selection may be made without further discussion or negotiation; therefore, proposals 

should be submitted upon the most favorable terms. Proposals must demonstrate an understanding of the 

scope of work, the ability to accomplish the tasks set forth, and must include information that will enable 

Consolidated School District of New Britain to determine the Proposer's over all qualifications. Consolidated 

School District of New Britain reserves the right to request additional information or clarification on any 

matter included in the proposal. Prior to the award, Consolidated School District of New Britain may elect 

to conduct negotiations with the highest ranked proposers for purposes, which may include but are not 

limited to: 

 

i. Resolving minor differences and informalities; 

ii. Clarifying necessary details and responsibilities; 

iii. Emphasizing important issues and points; 

iv. Receiving assurances from proposers; and/or 

v. Exploring ways to improve the final contract. 

 

If good-faith negotiations between the highest ranked bidder and the Consolidated School District of New 

Britain do not result in mutually agreeable terms, Consolidated School District of New Britain reserves the 

right to abandon negotiations with the highest ranked bidder, rescind its Notice of Intent to Award, and 

commence negotiations with the second highest ranked Bidder. 

 

Requests for Clarification and/or Supplemental Information 

 

As part of the review process, Consolidated School District of New Britain may request the Proposer to 

supply, in writing: clarifications; additional documentation; or information needed to fairly evaluate each 

proposal. 

Proposers are required to provide a written response within three (3) business days of their receipt of any 

request for clarification by the Consolidated School District of New Britain. 

112



 

7  

Presentations 

 

Consolidated School District of New Britain reserves the right, but is not obligated, to request that each 

proposer provide a formal presentation of its proposal at a date and time to be determined. If required by 

Consolidated School District of New Britain, it is anticipated that such presentation will not exceed one (1) 

hours. No proposer will be entitled to be present during, or otherwise receive any information regarding, 

any other presentation of any other proposer. 

 

Consolidated School District of New Britain will include proposals presentations (if requested), references, 

phase II assessment and interviews in its evaluation. 

 

Review of References: Each Proposer is required to provide references for three (3) education 

institutions, Fortune 1000 companies, or agencies, of a comparable size and scope to Consolidated School 

District of New Britain, with which it has an Agreement providing goods and/or services similar to the 

scope of this RFP. Please include name, title, telephone number and e-mail address of a contact person at 

each institution Consolidated School District of New Britain reserves the right, but is not obligated, to 

contact and review any Managed Print Services program of any institution by any Proposer as a reference. 

 

Proposal Qualification Data 

 

If necessary to evaluate proposals, Proposers may be requested to furnish information including but not 

limited to the following topics: 

 

a. Financial resources; 

b. Personnel resources; 

c. Project Plan; 

d. Ability to meet schedules with Project Timeline; and 

e. Ability to meet specification requirements. 

 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

Bidders must address the following requirements in their proposal, detailing how their services meet or 

exceed each feature. 

 

Proposer’s Background and Experience 

 

a. Company Profile. 

 

b. Provide a description of your organization’s primary line of business, including a list of goods and services 

offered by your company. 

 

c. Describe your company’s experience delivering services similar in size and breadth to the Scope of Services 

outlined in this RFP and how it provides a competitive advantage in the education market. Proposals must 

demonstrate a minimum of five (5) years of experience. 

 

d. Describe how you or your company has positioned itself to provide services that are competitively 

advantageous or provide value beyond other companies, and how you rank in particular services relative to 

your competitors. Include a comparison of your equipment and services versus others on the market and 

what value you provide beyond the competitors. 

113



 

8  

e. Describe your firm’s methods and procedures for controlling and assuring the quality of services being 

provided by your firm’s workforce. Please include work protocols, standard procedures and control 

measures implemented by your firm and its staff. 

 

f. If applicable, please describe your firm’s database and management tools that will be used to manage the 

tasks and track issues associated with the deliverables of this project. 

 

g. Organizational Chart – Provide an organizational chart showing the hierarchical structure of functions and 

positions within your organization. 

 

h. Describe your experience implementing Managed Print Services solutions at education institutions similar 

to Consolidated School District of New Britain. 

 

i. Provide a list of your distribution affiliations (HP, Dell, etc.) and discuss the products you are certified to 

resell and service. 

 

j. Describe your experience in performing detailed assessments as described in this RFP and provide case 

histories of various levels of completed assessments. Please include details of how you would conduct a 

full walk-through of Consolidated School District of New Britain 

 

k. If you are a selected awardee, does your organization intend to subcontract any part of the MPS services? 

If so, please provide details. 

 

l. Describe your ability to provide a single point of contact and toll-free number for all service inquiries. 

 

m. Provide any additional information you feel is relevant to this RFP. 

 

PROJECT SCOPE OF SERVICES 

PROJECT OVERVIEW: 

The following outlines the Project Scope of Services for a professional firm to implement a cost per copy 

(CPC) Managed Print Services (MPS) program at the Consolidated School District of New Britain. The 

components of this project will require: recommendations for changes to current printing practices and/or 

infrastructure improvements; proposals for on-going optimization of hard copy devices; plan for life cycle 

management of printing and multi-functional hardware; process for machine repair and maintenance; 

method of replenishment of supplies; description of process for vendor collaboration in support of existing 

internal help-desks (in addition to required independent help desk managed by vendor); implementation 

plan including description of how support is provided for change management and training, real-time fleet 

monitoring, and formalized reporting on printing operations. 

 

 DELIVERABLES AND MAIN REQUIREMENTS 
 

Upon award of the resultant contract, the selected vendor shall deliver the equipment and/or provide 

services that meet the requirements of Consolidated School District of New Britain as listed herein. 

 

Requirements: 

Provide an explanation of: installation services deemed necessary for a successful implementation; the 

benefits a MPS program will provide to Consolidated School District of New Britain; and how the vendor 

will achieve said plan. The plan should include multiple options including, but not limited to: 

114



 

9  

Description of your method to right size multi-function devices (MFD) at Consolidated School District of 

New Britain. 

 

Provide a detailed business model for replacement of current copiers/MFD’s with like for like models for 

Consolidated School District of New Britain. 

 

Discuss your process for providing on-going optimization services, including: planning for standardization, 

right-sizing and consulting services; office mapping; and researching user needs for new/updated copier 

hardware for Consolidated School District of New Britain printing, scanning, faxing, and photocopier 

hardware. Optimization services should include: 

i. Life-Cycle Management Services, including repair and maintenance for Consolidated 

School District of New Britain printing, scanning and copying hardware; 

ii. Supply replenishment options ensuring sufficient and accessible supplies are available 

including out of hours needs and spikes in need common in education; 

iii. Real-time fleet performance monitoring and billing; 

iv. Collaboration with Consolidated School District of New Britain to provide Help Desk 

support managed by Consolidated School District of New Britain, in addition to independent 

Help Desk managed by the vendor. 

v. Describe options and process for upgrading existing equipment or allowable trade-ins during 

the term of a placement of a vendor-owned machine. 

 

Green Initiative Requirements: 

Consolidated School District of New Britain takes environmental responsibility very seriously and therefore 

is interested in not only your company’s green initiatives, but also on how your company can assist 

Consolidated School District of New Britain in identifying additional opportunities to broaden the reach of 

Consolidated School District of New Britain’s positive impact on the local and global environments. 

Therefore, Respondents proposal shall address each of the below requirements: 

 

a. Provide a detailed narrative of your organization’s green initiative efforts. 

b. Describe how your organization manages the power consumption of printers, fax machines, 

and multifunctional devices. 

c. Describe how your organization can reduce Consolidated School District of New Britain’s 

current power consumption specifically related to the goods and services being solicited in 

the RFP. 

d. Provide a detailed narrative on how your organization can assist Consolidated School 

District of New Britain in minimizing its paper consumption. 

 

TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

Bidders must address the following requirement in their submission detailing: 

Proposed equipment (brochure and BLI rating/review). 

 

On-Site Support Requirements 

Consolidated School District of New Britain requires a minimum response of (4) hours with onsite 

technician (tech) available at each location to service the fleet of copiers. The tech(s) will be available 

onsite from 8:30 AM – 5:30 PM, Monday through Friday. A designated backup should also be available 

in case of absence. The backup techs need to be familiar with the location of the fleet machines and the 

requirements listed below. Call back times need to be within 60 minutes and tech support must be 

provided within four (4) hours. We require a 95% response time for all service calls placed. We will 

115



 

10  

require a main help desk number to be available for customers to place service calls and to order supplies. 

All calls will be logged and reports will be made available as needed. The onsite technician will: 

 

a. Understand common machine fault codes and correct them. 

b. Diagnose and correct common image quality problems. 

c. Replace major components in the print engine, fusing subsystem, and paper handling areas 

of the machines. 

d. Develop and implement a preventive maintenance schedule for identified high-use 

equipment. 

e. Maintain an appropriate on-site inventory of parts and supplies. 

f. When required, vendor’s on-site technician will serve as an interface to off-site technicians 

or remote diagnostics. 

g. When required vendor’s on-site technician will perform color balancing and color printer 

calibration. 

h. Maintain customer contracted uptime (95% three month rolling average uptime) and include 

a plan for managing the Service Level Agreement (SLA) 

i. The vendor will supply a list of meter read information in electronic format that will interface 

with all billing programs and download to internal systems. 

 

Please provide a description of the following: 

• Your approach to training users on any new equipment or changes 

o Do you have training documentation or online training available? 

o For users and Service Desk? 

• The work flow and process around toner replacements. 

o What is your removable/recycle process? 

o What is the service level on toner delivery? 

o What is the process if the user needs toner in an emergency? 

o Will the vendor supply toner on hand in an emergency? 

• The process for services and/or maintenance on MFD’s 

o What is the service level on break-fix calls? 

o Do you keep parts on site for emergency devices? 

o Do you have hot swap devices for down machines? 
 

Describe the details of the Manage Print Service program. 

• How will we know if this program is successful? 

• How will success be measured? 

Provide a list of any software or hardware (besides the MFD’s themselves) that will be used to drive 

success of the program. Is there any software or hardware that is not included in this proposal that is 

required for success of the program? 

 

Provide a transition plan to take Consolidated School District of New Britain from its current state to you 

manage print service program. 

 

IMPLEMENTATION EXPECTATIONS, TIMELINE & TRANSITION-OUT PLAN 
 

The selected vendor shall deliver a completed implementation plan and timeline for the duration of each 

phase of the project. The Project Plan should describe the programs and/or resources, which support the 

likelihood of delivering a Managed Print Services Program. 

 

Provide a completed implementation plan with timeline including at a minimum: 

116



 

11  

- Changes to current fleet of copiers/MFDs at Consolidated School District of New Britain 

- Rollout of supply replenishment services 

- Fleet monitoring and reporting/billing 

- Integration of the Print Management Help Desk into the SJFC Service Desk operation. 
 

STAFFING REQUIREMENTS, ROLES AND SKILL SETS 
 

Describe your ability to support all locations listed as in-scope within this RFP. 

 
 

Provide your organization’s formula for determining on-site support representation for all locations; and 

Provide a list of qualified technicians who will manage all locations. 

Provide an organizational chart showing the hierarchical structure of functions and 

positions within your organization. 

 

Respondent’s proposal may include any industry paper or non-academic publications of note that 

demonstrate the expertise of their organization, staff or management team in their respective and relevant 

field(s). 

 

Selected vendor is at all times ultimately responsible for troubleshooting all MFDs under this program. 

Help Desk Support: Additional details related to Help Desk Support 

ONGOING ACTIVITY AND TRAINING 
 

Vendor will be required to provide ongoing training of Consolidated School District of New Britain faculty 

and staff for optimizing their printing practices, while decreasing annual printing spend in departmental 

budgets and grants. 

 

Vendor will be required to train Consolidated School District of New Britain staff, as needed, within one 

week of installation of equipment. 

 

Vendor Duties and Responsibilities: 

 

Describe your options and process for submitting the following service requests: 

 

- Meter readings 
 

- Describe your process for tracking and filling supply orders (i.e. toner) – including specified 

turn-around time. 
 

- Must have ability to supply critical equipment parts within 24 hours; 
 

- Must provide on-site preventative maintenance; 
 

- Describe your organization’s ability to diagnose and repair certain issues remotely; must 

provide a comparable, or better, loaner machine within 24 hours of interrupted service. 

117



 

12  

- Must have ability to monitor and support existing hardware (printers, scanners) inventory 

(open architecture) which must be readily available to Consolidated School District of New 

Britain for auditing purposes. 
 

- Existing hardware includes: see equipment list. 
 

- Must support desktop, workgroup, network and low to mid volume production copiers, 

printers, and scanners. 
 

- Manage installation of all hardware (copiers, etc.) including delivery, uncrate, assemble, 

test and run, assigning to server, securing IP address and loading drivers and printer 

software. Vendor must follow Consolidated School District of New Britain’s currently 

established protocol for requesting and securing IP addresses. 
 

- Must be able to support departmental/building moves and equipment 

relocation/reinstallation as needed. Any such move/reinstallation is expected not to impact 

any warranty that is in place and vendor will be required to replace any machine that is 

damaged during such move at no additional expense to Consolidated School District of 

New Britain. 
 

- Provide requirements for Consolidated School District of New Britain support required 

during implementation. Include number of employees, roles, responsibilities, on-going 

support requirements, etc. 
 

Consolidated School District of New Britain will require a certain amount of supplies, including but not 

limited toner, available on-site to accommodate emergent situations. Respondent shall provide estimates of 

on-site inventory levels, including which items they propose to maintain on-site while giving consideration 

to the need for consistent monitoring of supplies on a per machine basis through an automated process with 

automatic releases of supplies when necessary. 

 

PERFORMANCE CRITERIA: 
 

Reporting 

Describe ability to supply meaningful reporting such as volume by user, total number of pages and trending. 

 

Describe ability to provide monthly reports that track service calls, service history, end user copy and print 

usage, inventory/service/asset management. 

 

Account Management 

 

Describe your process for adding/removing devices under a multi-location MPS program. 

Provide a detailed strategy for removal of devices/right sizing copier fleets. Specify: 

Replace of all equipment via an attrition model; 

Full replacement model 

Describe your fleet cancellation options and allowable timelines. 

118



 

13  

Describe your options for existing machine upgrades during the term of a vendor- owned 

equipment placement. 

Describe your policy on equipment trade-in allowances. 
 

Inventory Control 

Successful vendor should provide a strategy for developing and maintaining ongoing inventory control. 

Methodology for implementing change at the department level after removing equipment and updating 

inventory control. 

 

IT REQUIREMENTS 
 

Security/Encryption 

 

Each model that is networked and has a hard drive will be required to have successfully completed or be in 

the process of completing Common Criteria certification. The vendor must include proof of certification. 

Device certification should include the entire device (network controller, hard disk, embedded web server, 

external ports, etc.) and not only specific subsystems. For each product documentation is required indicating 

what subsystems are being certified. 

 

Device certification should include proof of separation of fax and network functionality. 

 

Describe process for CERT notifications, vendor vulnerability disclosures, remediation of vulnerabilities, 

and notification of end-users are notified. 

 

Define preventative maintenance plan, including process for handling and installing patches and security 

updates, especially as pertains to firmware upgrades and device response times. 

 

Describe capabilities for protecting sensitive fax information. 

 

Provide a list of software used for security monitoring the hardware on your devices 

If it’s not included in the cost, provide the cost of the software and hardware for the system. 
 

All security issues require rapid response and immediate remediation. Vendor shall provide a plan, 

including maximum response times to address Consolidated School District of New Britain’s need for rapid 

response and resolution. 

 

Software Requirements 

 

Any software installed by the vendor must successfully integrate with the computer systems at all 

Consolidated School District of New Britain locations. Scanning features must fully integrate with the district’s 

email services. 

 

List of Desktop Operating Systems 

Windows 10 

Windows 11 

Mac OS 

List of Server Protocols and Operating Systems 

Windows Server 2019 

Papercut Server 

119



 

14  

 

Vendor may be required to install or provide, where necessary, all required drivers for the various machines. 

 

Device should allow for disk overwrite for copies and printing. If so, describe whether it includes 

automatic overwrite when job is completed or on demand. Detail any additional hardware or software 

required for this function. 

 

Device should allow for disk overwrite for scanning. If so, describe whether it includes automatic overwrite 

when job is completed or on demand. Detail any additional hardware or software required for this function. 

 

Describe whether remote access protocols such as SNMP, HTTP, FTP be shut down on your equipment. 

 

Does your equipment authenticate users for network functions such as network scanning? If so, how is this 

accomplished (local vs. server based)? 

 

Successful vendor will insure that MFP device’s that are removed will have the hard drives wiped at no 

charge and to high security standard. 

 

CONTRACT TERM 
 

It is anticipated that the length of the contract resulting from this RFP will be for five (5) years. 

 

COST PER COPY PROPOSAL MFD COPIERS 
 

Consolidated School District of New Britain is looking for an all-inclusive (except paper) Cost per 

Copy/Print Program to replace current MFD fleet (see inventory list addendum). 

Average Monthly Volume MFD Fleet 
 

B&W Copies/Prints 

Color Copies/Prints 

 

Inventory and volume attached in inventory list. 

120



 

15  

 

Vendor Proposed Cost per Copy MFD (based on minimum of 1,200,000 

copies/prints per month-60 Month Term) 

Cost per Copy/Print $  

Cost per Color Copy/Print $  

Overage Cost per Copy/Print $  

Cost per copy/print fixed for contract term. 

 
Additional Equipment 

 

Consolidated School District of New Britain wishes to maintain a coterminous fleet and requires a 

formula for adding additional equipment over term of the agreement. For the first 24 months of this 

agreement additional equipment should be new and for the remaining term equipment could be new or 

remanufactured. 
 

Segment Speeds 
Monthly Volume 

Band 

A4   

1 up to 20  

2 21-30  

3 31-40  

4 41-69  

5 70-90  

6 91+  

   

Color 30  

Color 50  

   

 
 

Please provide monthly volume bands for additional equipment. 

Current Equipment and Average Monthly Print/Copy Volume. 

See attached list 

*Proposals must include a minimum of “like for like” or greater equipment specification based on 

current in place equipment. 

121



 

16  

*Equipment is to be configured with finishers and paper sources required to accommodate unit’s 

monthly volume production. 

Central Office Print Shop Consideration  

Needs: 
 

• Color, quick copies/good quality-color unit 

• High capacity drawers (13 x19 paper) 

• Efi fiery with command work stations for MAC/PC 

• Saddle stitching capability with other stapling capability 

 
 

Managed Print Solution-Network Printers 

Cost per Print B&W $  

Cost per Print Color $  

*Network Printer list and print volumes attached.  

*Printers listed are contracted at the school level and does not represent every 

network printer in the district. Any contracted network printer services would 

still be done at the school level.  

 
Additional Software Requirements: 

 

The Consolidated School District of New Britain has a printing environment that allows the staff to send 
print jobs into a “cloud queue” in order to be able to retrieve jobs securely for processing only when the 
user is at the printing device. The district uses RFID badges for staff, and incorporate that into the 
printing environment by using RFID readers to allow staff access to the devices. This allows for secure 
printing and to alleviates lost copies events. The district uses Papercut as our solution for this, and 
would like to continue doing so. Document scanning features must fully integrate with our staff’s email 
services.

122



 

17  

This sheet must be completed, signed and returned with Respondent’s proposal. Failure to sign and 
return this sheet will result in the rejection of your proposal. 

 

1. By signature hereon, Respondent offers and agrees to furnish the products and/or services at 
the prices proposal and comply with all terms, conditions and requirements set forth in the 
Request for Proposal. 

 
2. By signature hereon, Respondent affirms that he has not given nor intends to give at any time 

hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, 
trip, favor or service to any CSDNB employee, officer or board member in connection with the 
submitted proposal. 

 

3. By signature hereon, the Respondent hereby certifies that neither the Respondent nor the 
firm, corporation, partnership or institution represented by the Respondent, or anyone acting 
for the firm, corporation, or institution has violated federal or state antitrust laws, nor 
communicated, directly or indirectly the proposal made to any competitor or any other person 
engaged in such line of business. 

 
4. By signature hereon, Respondent certifies that all statements and information prepared and 

submitted in response to this solicitation are current, complete and accurate. 
 

5. By signature hereon, Respondent certifies that the individual signing this document and the 
documents made part of the Request for Proposal is authorized to sign such documents on 
behalf of the company and to bind the company under any contract which may result from the 
submission of this proposal. 

 
6. By signature hereon, Respondent certifies it is a small business and/or a minority/female 

owned business as indicated below. Indicate status if applicable: 
 

( ) Small Business 
( ) Minority/Female Owned Business 

 

7. By signature hereon, Respondent certifies that no relationship, whether by relative, business 
associate, capital funding agreement or by any other such kinship exist between Respondent 
and an employee of CSDNB. 

 
8. By signature hereon, Respondent affirms that he has not received compensation for 

participation in the preparation of the specifications for this Request for Proposal. 
 

9. By signature hereon, Respondent signifies his compliance with all Federal laws and 
regulations pertaining to equal employment opportunities. 

 

10. Respondent certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals are 
presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 

123



 

18  

Complete the Following: 
 

Federal Employer Identification No.:  
 

If Sole Owner, SS No.:  
 

If a Corporation, State of Incorporation:  
 

Submitted By:   
(Company Name) 

 
 

(Authorized Signature) 
 
 
 

(Printed Name/Title) 
 
 
 

(Date) 
 
 
 

(Street Address) 
 
 
 

(City, State, Zip Code) 
 

PRICING AND DELIVERY SCHEDULE 

 
 

Proposal of:   
(Company Name) 

 
Having carefully examined all the specifications and requirements of this Request for Proposal and any 
attachments thereto, the undersigned proposes to furnish the goods and services as required at the 
BELOW PROPOSALD TERMS. 

 

Pricing Schedule: $  
 

 
 
 

Submitted By:   
(Authorized Signature) 

 
 
 

(Printed Name/Title) 
 
 
 

(Date) 

124



 

19  

RESPONDENT QUESTIONNAIRE 

 
 

Respondents are requested to submit a complete response to each of the below listed items. Responses 
requiring additional space should be brief and submitted as an attachment to your proposal package. 
Please reference each response by its item number indicated below: 

 
 

1. Legal name of the company:  
 

Number of years in the business:  
 

Type of Operation: Individual  Partnership Corporation  
 

Number of employees:  
 

2. Is your company currently in default on, any loan agreement or financing agreement with any 
bank, financial institution, or other entity? If yes, specify date(s), details, circumstances and 
prospects for resolution. 

 

3. Provide a current financial statement for your company. 
 

4. Provide a customer reference list of no less than three (3) organizations with which your 
company currently has contracts with and has previously provided goods and/or services of 
equal type and scope, as requested herein, within the past five (5) years. The reference list 
must include company name, contact person, and telephone number, project description and 
length of business relationship. 

 
5. Describe your company’s service support philosophy, how it is carried out, and how success 

in keeping this philosophy is measured. 
 

6. Does any relationship exist whether by relative, business associate, capital funding 
agreement or any other such kinship exist between your company and any CSDNB 
employee? If yes, please explain. 

 
7. Is your company a minority-owned business? If so, under what certifying agency, state or 

federal is it certified? 

 
 

Submitted By:   
(Authorized Signature) 

 
 
 

(Printed Name/Title) 

125



Company MFP Maker Monthly Lease Papercut licenses
Monthly
Copy

MFP B&W /
copy

MFP Color /
copy

Overage Cost per
copy/

lease and price
 per copy
per month Yearly cost

CBS Xerox $327,600.00

ABS Canon $245,076.00

Ricoh Ricoh-Greenline $212,019.36

126



Evaluations
ABS CBS Ricoh

Member 1 90 78 94
Member 2 66 54 74
Member 3 86 75 91
Member 4 73 57 87
Member 5 84 64 88
Member 6 78 39 88
Member 7 90 69 86
Member 8 78 50 92
Member 9 71 46 88
Member 10 79 37 93
Total 795 569 881

Average 79.5 56.9 88.1

127



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Jeff Prokop () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on June 5, 2023.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Jeff Prokop Staff Presenter: Jeff Prokop

Type of Memorandum

Purchase Order

Background and Purpose/Rationale

The quote contains additional services (enrollment and etching) and licenses that are not part of
contract pricing. The chromebook devices are priced from the PEPPM 2022 Catalog. It is a nationwide
cooperative contract created to assist government agencies and educational organizations fulfill their
bidding requirements for procurement.

This purchase order is for 900 Dell chromebooks for the elementary schools. These will be used for the
student devices at the middle and secondary grades. While the devices are priced from the PEPPM 2022
Catalog contract, the quote includes additional services (etching and enrollment services) which are not
specific to the contract pricing.

Financial Information

The total is $288,900.00 and the funding source is MIS Local Budget Equipment Replacement 2023-24
101092125800-57345.

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee on May 31, 2023

NJWR297 - 900 Dell CBs - Jeffrey Prokop.pdf

128

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1XUA1nlCdYRZjLXMGqNUoL3G1_7D8n0fU/view?usp=drivesdk


Hardware Software Services IT Solutions Brands Research Hub

Review and Complete Purchase

Thank you for choosing CDW. We have received your quote.

JEFF PROKOP,

Thank you for considering CDW•G for your technology needs. The details of your quote are below. If 

you are an eProcurement or single sign on customer, please log into your system to access 

the CDW site. You can search for your quote to retrieve and transfer back into your system for 

processing.

For all other customers, click below to convert your quote to an order.

Convert Quote to Order 

QUOTE # QUOTE DATE QUOTE REFERENCE CUSTOMER # GRAND TOTAL

NJWR297 5/15/2023 DELL 900 2354906 $288,900.00

QUOTE DETAILS

ITEM QTY CDW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

Google Chrome Education Upgrade 900 5988499 $32.00 $28,800.00

Mfg. Part#: CROS-SW-DIS-EDU-NEW

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: PEPPM 2022 Catalog Agreement (PEPPM2022)

CDW Chrome OS White Glove Service with Laser Etching-Tier 

1 Static Small

900 3223462 $24.00 $21,600.00

Mfg. Part#: CUSTOMBNDWGS1

Contract: PEPPM 2022 Catalog Agreement (PEPPM2022)

CDW CDWG Asset Tag applied WITH another CDW 

Configuration Center service

900 338520 $0.00 $0.00

Mfg. Part#: ASSETTAGW/INSTALL

UNSPSC: 81111511

Contract: MARKET

Dell Chromebook 3110 - 11.6" - Celeron N4500 - 4 GB RAM - 

32 GB eMMC

900 6847262 $265.00 $238,500.00

Mfg. Part#: 939GH

Contract: PEPPM 2022 Catalog Agreement (PEPPM2022)

INSTALL SUMMARY

ITEM QTY CDW#

Dell Chromebook 3110 - 11.6" - Celeron N4500 - 4 GB RAM -

32 GB eMMC

150 6847262

**ITEMS TO BE INSTALLED**

CDW CDWG Asset Tag applied WITH another CDW Configuration

Center service

150 338520

SUBTOTAL

$288,900.00

SHIPPING

$0.00

SALES TAX

$0.00

GRAND TOTAL

$288,900.00 129

https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions/site-map.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/software.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/services/amplified-services.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/solutions.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/brand.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/research-hub.html
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/quotes/QuoteDetails.aspx?qn=NJWR297
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=5988499
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=3223462
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=3223462
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=338520
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=338520
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6847262
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6847262


Page 2 of 3

PURCHASER BILLING INFO

DELIVER TO

Billing Address:

CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

272 MAIN ST

PO BOX 1960

NEW BRITAIN, CT 06051-2663

Phone: (860) 225-6351

Payment Terms: NET 30 Days-Govt/Ed

Shipping Address:

PULASKI MIDDLE SCHOOL

JEFF PROKOP

757 FARMINGTON AVE

NEW BRITAIN, CT 06053

Shipping Method: UPS Ground (2- 3 Day)

Please remit payments to:

CDW Government

75 Remittance Drive

Suite 1515

Chicago, IL 60675-1515

Sales Contact Info 

Vincent Mulvihill   |  (866) 773-7348 | vinny@cdwg.com

LEASE OPTIONS

FMV TOTAL FMV LEASE OPTION

BO TOTAL

BO LEASE OPTION

$288,900.00 $7,667.41/Month $288,900.00 $8,877.90/Month

Monthly payment based on 36 month lease. Other terms and options are available. Contact your Account Manager for details. Payment quoted

is subject to change.    

Why finance?   

• Lower Upfront Costs. Get the products you need without impacting cash flow. Preserve your working capital and existing credit line. 

• Flexible Payment Terms. 100% financing with no money down, payment deferrals and payment schedules that match your company's

business cycles. 

• Predictable, Low Monthly Payments. Pay over time. Lease payments are fixed and can be tailored to your budget levels or revenue streams. 

• Technology Refresh. Keep current technology with minimal financial impact or risk. Add-on or upgrade during the lease term and choose to

return or purchase the equipment at end of lease. 

• Bundle Costs. You can combine hardware, software, and services into a single transaction and pay for your software licenses over time! We

know your challenges and understand the need for flexibility.   

General Terms and Conditions:   

This quote is not legally binding and is for discussion purposes only. The rates are estimate only and are based on a collection of industry data

from numerous sources. All rates and financial quotes are subject to final review, approval, and documentation by our leasing partners.

Payments above exclude all applicable taxes. Financing is subject to credit approval and review of final equipment and services configuration.

Fair Market Value leases are structured with the assumption that the equipment has a residual value at the end of the lease term.

Need Help?

My Account Support Call 800.800.4239

About Us | Privacy Policy | Terms and Conditions 

This order is subject to CDW's Terms and Conditions of Sales and Service Projects at

http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx

130

https://www.cdwg.com/accountcenter/logon
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/help-center.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/about/overview.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions/privacy-notice.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions.html
http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx


Page 3 of 3

For more information, contact a CDW account manager

© 2023 CDW•G LLC, 200 N. Milwaukee Avenue, Vernon Hills, IL 60061 | 800.808.4239

131



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Jeff Prokop () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on June 5, 2023.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Jeff Prokop Staff Presenter: Jeff Prokop

Type of Memorandum

Purchase Order

Background and Purpose/Rationale

The quote contains additional services (enrollment and etching) and licenses that are not part of
contract pricing.

The chromebook devices are priced from the PEPPM 2022 Catalog. It is a nationwide cooperative
contract created to assist government agencies and educational organizations fulfill their bidding
requirements for procurement.

This purchase order is for 900 touchscreen chromebooks for the elementary schools. These will be used
for the student devices at the elementary grades.

While the devices are priced from the PEPPM 2022 Catalog contract, the quote includes additional
services (etching and enrollment services) which are not specific to the contract pricing.

Financial Information

The total is $301,500.00 and the funding source is MIS Local Budget Equipment Replacement
101092125800-57345.

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee on May 31, 2023

NJWR371 - 900 Acer CBs - Jeffrey Prokop.pdf

132

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1VW7DE_xAeXP-Ks7RxpRqN7M-aHB4U3Kr/view?usp=drivesdk


Hardware Software Services IT Solutions Brands Research Hub

Review and Complete Purchase

Thank you for choosing CDW. We have received your quote.

JEFF PROKOP,

Thank you for considering CDW•G for your technology needs. The details of your quote are below. If 

you are an eProcurement or single sign on customer, please log into your system to access 

the CDW site. You can search for your quote to retrieve and transfer back into your system for 

processing.

For all other customers, click below to convert your quote to an order.

Convert Quote to Order 

QUOTE # QUOTE DATE QUOTE REFERENCE CUSTOMER # GRAND TOTAL

NJWR371 5/15/2023 ACER 900 2354906 $301,500.00

QUOTE DETAILS

ITEM QTY CDW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

Google Chrome Education Upgrade 900 5988499 $32.00 $28,800.00

Mfg. Part#: CROS-SW-DIS-EDU-NEW

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: PEPPM 2022 Catalog Agreement (PEPPM2022)

CDW Chrome OS White Glove Service with Laser Etching-Tier 

1 Static Small

900 3223462 $24.00 $21,600.00

Mfg. Part#: CUSTOMBNDWGS1

Contract: PEPPM 2022 Catalog Agreement (PEPPM2022)

CDW CDWG Asset Tag applied WITH another CDW 

Configuration Center service

900 338520 $0.00 $0.00

Mfg. Part#: ASSETTAGW/INSTALL

UNSPSC: 81111511

Contract: MARKET

Acer Chromebook 511 C734T - 11.6" - Celeron N4500 - 4 GB 

RAM - 32 GB SSD -

900 6762534 $279.00 $251,100.00

Mfg. Part#: NX.AYWAA.001

Contract: PEPPM 2022 Catalog Agreement (PEPPM2022)

SUBTOTAL

$301,500.00

SHIPPING

$0.00

SALES TAX

$0.00

GRAND TOTAL

$301,500.00 

PURCHASER BILLING INFO

DELIVER TO

133

https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions/site-map.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/software.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/services/amplified-services.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/solutions.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/brand.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/research-hub.html
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/quotes/QuoteDetails.aspx?qn=NJWR371
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=5988499
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=3223462
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=3223462
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=338520
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=338520
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6762534
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=6762534


Page 2 of 3

Billing Address:

CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

272 MAIN ST

PO BOX 1960

NEW BRITAIN, CT 06051-2663

Phone: (860) 225-6351

Payment Terms: NET 30 Days-Govt/Ed

Shipping Address:

PULASKI MIDDLE SCHOOL

JEFF PROKOP

757 FARMINGTON AVE

NEW BRITAIN, CT 06053

Shipping Method: UPS Ground (2- 3 Day)

Please remit payments to:

CDW Government

75 Remittance Drive

Suite 1515

Chicago, IL 60675-1515

Sales Contact Info 

Vincent Mulvihill   |  (866) 773-7348 | vinny@cdwg.com

LEASE OPTIONS

FMV TOTAL FMV LEASE OPTION

BO TOTAL

BO LEASE OPTION

$301,500.00 $8,001.81/Month $301,500.00 $9,265.10/Month

Monthly payment based on 36 month lease. Other terms and options are available. Contact your Account Manager for details. Payment quoted

is subject to change.    

Why finance?   

• Lower Upfront Costs. Get the products you need without impacting cash flow. Preserve your working capital and existing credit line. 

• Flexible Payment Terms. 100% financing with no money down, payment deferrals and payment schedules that match your company's

business cycles. 

• Predictable, Low Monthly Payments. Pay over time. Lease payments are fixed and can be tailored to your budget levels or revenue streams. 

• Technology Refresh. Keep current technology with minimal financial impact or risk. Add-on or upgrade during the lease term and choose to

return or purchase the equipment at end of lease. 

• Bundle Costs. You can combine hardware, software, and services into a single transaction and pay for your software licenses over time! We

know your challenges and understand the need for flexibility.   

General Terms and Conditions:   

This quote is not legally binding and is for discussion purposes only. The rates are estimate only and are based on a collection of industry data

from numerous sources. All rates and financial quotes are subject to final review, approval, and documentation by our leasing partners.

Payments above exclude all applicable taxes. Financing is subject to credit approval and review of final equipment and services configuration.

Fair Market Value leases are structured with the assumption that the equipment has a residual value at the end of the lease term.

Need Help?

My Account Support Call 800.800.4239

About Us | Privacy Policy | Terms and Conditions 

This order is subject to CDW's Terms and Conditions of Sales and Service Projects at

http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx

For more information, contact a CDW account manager

134

https://www.cdwg.com/accountcenter/logon
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/help-center.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/about/overview.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions/privacy-notice.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions.html
http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx


Page 3 of 3

© 2023 CDW•G LLC, 200 N. Milwaukee Avenue, Vernon Hills, IL 60061 | 800.808.4239

135



Board Memorandum
Submitted by Jeff Prokop () for approval at the Regular Board Meeting on June 5, 2023.

Senior Leadership Sponsor: Jeff Prokop Staff Presenter: Jeff Prokop

Type of Memorandum

Purchase Order

Background and Purpose/Rationale

The Network team of the IT Department has researched several antivirus products to replace our current
product.

After sitting through numerous product overviews, and a quote collection process for all potential
products, we chose to proceed with a one year license for Webroot EDR (Endpoint Detection and
Response)

The decision was based on features as well as price considerations.

Financial Information

The total is $26,650.00 and the funding source is MIS Local Software Budget (2023-24)
101092110000-53510.

Committee Review

To be reviewed by the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Committee on May 31, 2023

Antivirus Quotes Pricing Grid - Jeffrey Prokop.pdf, Webroot - Jeffrey Prokop.pdf

136

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1LP0lPiTADkG75tmSIdsD0sZBdtMvD8QJ/view?usp=drivesdk
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1lozR_zVBXcqoIWQHTZviktzHgnjadKEd/view?usp=drivesdk


Hardware Software Services IT Solutions Brands Research Hub

Review and Complete Purchase

Thank you for choosing CDW. We have received your quote.

JEFF PROKOP,

Thank you for considering CDW•G for your technology needs. The details of your quote are below. If 

you are an eProcurement or single sign on customer, please log into your system to access 

the CDW site. You can search for your quote to retrieve and transfer back into your system for 

processing.

For all other customers, click below to convert your quote to an order.

Convert Quote to Order 

QUOTE # QUOTE DATE QUOTE REFERENCE CUSTOMER # GRAND TOTAL

NKBC736 5/17/2023 WEBROOT 2354906 $26,650.00

QUOTE DETAILS

ITEM QTY CDW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

WEBROOT SECANYWHERE BUS ENDPT PROT 2600 7201185 $10.25 $26,650.00

Mfg. Part#: 1000062533

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: PEPPM 2022 Catalog Agreement (PEPPM2022)

SUBTOTAL

$26,650.00

SHIPPING

$0.00

SALES TAX

$0.00

GRAND TOTAL

$26,650.00 

PURCHASER BILLING INFO

DELIVER TO

Billing Address:

CONSOLIDATED SCHOOL DISTRICT

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

272 MAIN ST

PO BOX 1960

NEW BRITAIN, CT 06051-2663

Phone: (860) 225-6351

Payment Terms: NET 30 Days-Govt/Ed

Shipping Address:

SLADE MIDDLE SCHOOL

JEFF PROKOP

183 STEELE ST

MIS OFFICE

NEW BRITAIN, CT 06052-1598

Shipping Method: ELECTRONIC DISTRIBUTION

Please remit payments to:

CDW Government

75 Remittance Drive

Suite 1515

Chicago, IL 60675-1515

Sales Contact Info 

Vincent Mulvihill   |  (866) 773-7348 | vinny@cdwg.com

LEASE OPTIONS 137

https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions/site-map.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/software.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/services/amplified-services.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/solutions.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/brand.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/research-hub.html
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/quotes/QuoteDetails.aspx?qn=NKBC736
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=7201185


Page 2 of 2

FMV TOTAL FMV LEASE OPTION

BO TOTAL

BO LEASE OPTION

$26,650.00 $720.88/Month $26,650.00 $830.68/Month

Monthly payment based on 36 month lease. Other terms and options are available. Contact your Account Manager for details. Payment quoted

is subject to change.    

Why finance?   

• Lower Upfront Costs. Get the products you need without impacting cash flow. Preserve your working capital and existing credit line. 

• Flexible Payment Terms. 100% financing with no money down, payment deferrals and payment schedules that match your company's

business cycles. 

• Predictable, Low Monthly Payments. Pay over time. Lease payments are fixed and can be tailored to your budget levels or revenue streams. 

• Technology Refresh. Keep current technology with minimal financial impact or risk. Add-on or upgrade during the lease term and choose to

return or purchase the equipment at end of lease. 

• Bundle Costs. You can combine hardware, software, and services into a single transaction and pay for your software licenses over time! We

know your challenges and understand the need for flexibility.   

General Terms and Conditions:   

This quote is not legally binding and is for discussion purposes only. The rates are estimate only and are based on a collection of industry data

from numerous sources. All rates and financial quotes are subject to final review, approval, and documentation by our leasing partners.

Payments above exclude all applicable taxes. Financing is subject to credit approval and review of final equipment and services configuration.

Fair Market Value leases are structured with the assumption that the equipment has a residual value at the end of the lease term.

Need Help?

My Account Support Call 800.800.4239

About Us | Privacy Policy | Terms and Conditions 

This order is subject to CDW's Terms and Conditions of Sales and Service Projects at

http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx

For more information, contact a CDW account manager

© 2023 CDW•G LLC, 200 N. Milwaukee Avenue, Vernon Hills, IL 60061 | 800.808.4239

138

https://www.cdwg.com/accountcenter/logon
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/help-center.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/about/overview.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions/privacy-notice.html
https://www.cdwg.com/content/cdwg/en/terms-conditions.html
http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx


Product Vendor 1 (CDWG) Vendor 2 (DIRECT) Vendor 3 (SHI)
Webroot EDR $26,650.00 36,400.00 $36,400.00

139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173


	00 - Cover-05-31-23
	00 A - Letter to Clerk 05-31-23
	00B - DRAFT Finance Agenda 05-31-23 (For Posting)
	2B. Freezer
	05_25_2023 15_11_20- Robert Smedley Presentation to the Board - New
	140 Freezer BOE Presentation - Robert Smedley
	Untitled presentation (1)
	140 Freezer Budget - Sheet1


	2C. 05_30_2023 12_19_39- Tony Gasper Presentation to the Board - New
	03 - New Business Cover Page
	3A. 04-24-23 DRAFT - BOE Finance Minutes
	Board Members Present
	Mr. Anthony Cane, Ms. Gayle Sanders-Connolly, Ms. Monica Dawkins, and Ms. Annie Parker.
	CSDNB Staff Present
	Ms. Ann Alfano, Ms. Amy Anderson, Ms. Kim Billy, Ms. Lara Bohlke, Ms. Kristina DeNegre, Ms. Aja Edwards, Dr. Anthony Gasper, Ms. Rebecca Gonzalez, Ms. Wanda Lickwar, Ms. Maryellen Manning, Mr. Andrew Mazzei, Ms. Silvia Molina-Mayo, Mr. Jeffrey Prokop,...

	3B. Board Update FFT Committee May 2023
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23

	3C. Mayra Rodriguez Acceptance of Donation - New
	3D. FirstChurch
	Joe Vaverchak Acceptance of Donation - New (2)
	Donation - Mayra Rodriguez

	3E. GreaterHartfrdGrant
	Mayra Rodriguez Acceptance of Donation - New (1)
	Fund for Greater Hartford - Mayra Rodriguez

	3F. FeminineCare
	Rebecca Gonzalez Purchase Order
	Citron Hygiene agreement - 5.4.23 - Rebecca Gonzalez

	3G. CleaningSupplies
	Rebecca Gonzalez Bid Award - New (1)
	Custodial Bid Amended PUBLIC  - Rebecca Gonzalez

	3H. 30unitcharge
	3H. 30unitcharge
	C30B-H - Fully Assembled 30-Unit Charging Cart with Electronic Keypad — Pochar LLC - Jeffrey Prokop
	Consolidated School District of New Britain Quote Pochar - Jeffrey Prokop

	05_17_2023 03_18_04- Jeff Prokop Purchase Order and Bid Waiver - New

	3I. Chromebooks
	Alejandro Ortiz Purchase Order - New (2)
	NJWR222 - Alejandro Ortiz

	3J. Ricoh
	3J. Ricoh
	2022-2023_RFP-Copier-Managed-Print-Services-CSDNB-2023 - Jeffrey Prokop
	Copier RFP - Comparisons - Jeffrey Prokop
	Copier RFP - Evaluations - Jeffrey Prokop

	05_24_2023 04_43_14- Jeff Prokop Purchase Order and Contract Approval - New (1)

	3K. 900Chrome
	Jeff Prokop Purchase Order - DELL
	NJWR297 - 900 Dell CBs - Jeffrey Prokop

	3L. Services900Chrome
	Jeff Prokop Purchase Order touchscreen chromebooks
	NJWR371 - 900 Acer CBs - Jeffrey Prokop

	3M. Webroot
	05_23_2023 20_13_40- Jeff Prokop Purchase Order - New
	3M. Webroot
	Webroot - Jeffrey Prokop
	Antivirus Quotes Pricing Grid - Jeffrey Prokop


	3N. April 2023 Financial Report



